RIS

Fairwood i '

ARREFEERR QA I |

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED ' |
\\

(REREEMBRIZERAF) |
(Incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability) |
B ZE 4Rk Stock code :

. 2016/2017 ¥ ANNUAL REPORT /







e\ o
iy '} Contents
P
-. m e N
\N\X\\\“\w 4 \ BERIBERE
WWW\ 8 FREiRa

16 g dE

Y
R\

19 EEEAER

(o 23  EmeEs

! 38  LxEAWE

51 BYZHMRE

59 mEBER
60 ReBERHEMEEKER

61 mEmBRRE

(X} RAERSER #
64 SEBHESRER {i

66 B SRR ML M

1947010005 008009

137  *ZWEAR
90450 99002 i | :

139 AEEREHBHE Jiveas eqeay :a‘f..' e

FOrIeeN tiveens Vs epe.

140  FEEFHHRENE




DA EF

Corporate Information

EXE
HITES

BHEG (HTTERE)
BRERK (TTEAEE)

BAFHTES
RER R-F—tFNANHHIFHTE
FRERBUINTTEE)

PREC4F
EllEi:
ER=
FERE

ERERE

FERHE (L F)
RE5R
PREREF
ER=

FHERE

BRECEF (X
R &R
ElEi:

REER®
ERFY (EE)
el
FipH

NFHE

52
ESHETREHA

REm

FFEATRERTT
RIEE Rt AT

REEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Chi Keung (re-designated from Non-executive Director to
Independent Non-executive Director on
6 June 2017)

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman)
Ng Chi Keung

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman)
Ng Chi Keung
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman)
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Peter Wan Kam To

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mak Yee Mei

AUDITOR
KPMG

SOLICITORS

Mayer Brown JSM
Reed Smith Richards Butler



SHEEFEBR

MR BRI AR AR
EESEERET 5
BEROE—H2401-02F

EERT

FERTT (B8) BIRAA]
FBIERRITE B DT
HGRITERAR]
—ZER R UFRTT

PR RIRTT (SN IR AR A A
BRI THR AR
BAERITHER AT
EEEEELEITER AR
BITIRTT (%) BRAR
UBS AG

EMREE
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HMNEERERERME

FELANEE TR
EREEPL_E

FERMECRERE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited

Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

FEERNERRBRSE

HERAESFETERAT
FEERKER—N=5H
BMHPLTEB—E—ZERE

H5k

www.fairwoodholdings.com.hk

B SR AR
52

PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
2401-02, Admiralty Centre 1
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

UBS AG

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

2/F, TRP Commercial Centre
18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-6, 17/F, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.fairwoodholdings.com.hk

STOCK CODE
52



4

BENBK B

Highlights and Financial Calendar
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HIGHLIGHTS

WA BB 25 80918 (ZE— /5  BH24.2801E
JC) ¢ 3ENN6.3%

Revenue was HK$2,580.9 million (2016: HK$2,428.0
million), increased by 6.3%

FEBNABE2.053EIL(ZE—RF : B%2.008
EJU)  EIMN2.2% - MR EFHEFEHFENIERD
BEWZEFE  REZLEBEN G HBE1.8911E
TCIRE EF18.6% 2B 2.053 (87T

Profit for the year was HK$205.3 million (2016:
HK$200.8 million), increased by 2.2%. Profit from core
operations, before the net gain on disposal of non-
current assets held for sale from last year, recorded an
increase of 8.6% from HK$189.1 million to HK$205.3
million

PR EAERR O IRE529.5%(ZF—7<F : 29.6%)

Return on average equity' was 29.5% (2016: 29.6%)

EREREF A161.43B (1 (ZZF—7RF : 158.62/8
il)

Basic earnings per share were HK161.43 cents (2016:
HK158.62 cents)

BEED IR S8 58.0 Il R RIREIR S &K
50.078 1l - AERARIEKIASEAF - 2F A XKD
IRAL B 142,078l - KB LR L/ 88%

Final dividend of HK58.0 cents per share and special final
dividend of HK50.0 cents per share were proposed to
mark the 45th anniversary of Fairwood. Total dividend
per share for the year was HK142.0 cents, representing a
payout ratio of approximately 88%

MizE1: PR EERDRER ARNA TR EERA - i Note 1:  Return on average equity is defined as profit attributable to
HREEREHFENIERDEERSFE  RUFIIR equity shareholders of the Company before the net gain on
FRERETNTIE disposal of non-current assets held for sale against the

average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year
RIREFEEERAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

S N
- —EF-~E+t-A=thB

Interim results announcement
— 29 November 2016

h BARR RO B AR
- ZE-RE+-A=+H

Paid date of the interim dividend
— 30 December 2016

BEEERNM
- ZE2—+FAZ+=H

Annual results announcement
— 22 June 2017

TEMERHBFPER
() BRRAFAE
- ZE—+FNLH—BZE
—FE—tFNAtH
(BIEEEMX)

(2) BEBAREIS KEFRIREMRE

- TE—+FhATIBEE
—E—tFNA+N\H

Closure of register of members
(1) Annual general meeting
— 1 September 2017 to
7 September 2017
(both days inclusive)

(2) Proposed final dividend and special final dividend
— 14 September 2017 to
18 September 2017

(BREEREMRX) (both days inclusive)
BRREFRE Annual general meeting
- ZE—+HFhAtEH — 7 September 2017

RER S NS5 IR BRE
IR B EA
- ZE—EFTA=ZAZZA

Payable date of the final dividend and
special final dividend
— On or before 3 October 2017
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS (HK$'m)
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Chairman’s Statement
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

In the last financial year, revenue of the Group increased by 6.3%
to HK$2,580.9 million (2016: HK$2,428.0 million). Gross profit
margin slightly dropped to 15.5% (2016: 15.9%). Profit for the
year attributable to equity shareholders amounted to HK$205.3
million (2016: HK$200.8 million), increased by 2.2%. Profit from
core operations, before the net gain on disposal of non-current
assets held for sale from last year, recorded an increase of 8.6%
from HK$189.1 million to HK$205.3 million. Earnings per share
were HK161.43 cents (2016: HK158.62 cents).

3
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The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK58.0 cents
(2016: HK55.0 cents) per share and a special final dividend of
HK50.0 cents (2016: HK45.0 cents) per share for the year ended
31 March 2017. Together with the interim dividend of HK34.0
cents (2016: HK31.0 cents and a special interim dividend HK9.0
cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2017 amounts to HK142.0 cents (2016:
HK140.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution of
approximately 88% of the Group’s profit for the year. The
proposed final and special final dividends will be paid on or before
Tuesday, 3 October 2017 to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company at the close of business
on Monday, 18 September 2017.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
The Feel Good Movement

In the relentless pursuit of our mission to ensure our customers
“Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great Life!”, we have launched the “Feel
Good Movement”, a comprehensive initiative that further raises
the standard of our food quality, menu offerings, service and
dining environment.

As in the past, we have never stopped listening to our customers
and have kept abreast of developing trends, which have inspired
us to introduce a series of new “feel good” dishes. For example,
the No MSG series now offers dishes that are cooked with olive
oil; the Wholesome Delights series contains low calorie items
prepared with less oil and served with red rice; and the Tasty and
Green series features vegetarian options. We also offer our
customers a more personalised experience, allowing them to
choose to have more rice or less rice, white or red rice, different
spreads on toast and other customisation options, aimed at
satisfying their own preferences.

In our drive to satisfy every need of our customers and to raise our
service to still higher standards, we have launched one of the most
critical and industry-disrupting elements of our dining experience,
namely the “Delivered to Your Table” service. Offered at all
Fairwood outlets since April 2016, this dinner-hour service is
among the more personal ways that we have sought to exceed
the expectations of our customers. We will continue to explore
innovative ideas to enhance our food and service quality.
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Promoting a happy workforce has always been our priority, which
is why we have been offering employee development activities
and customer-centric training programmes, along with enhancing
staff communication at all levels. Such efforts have resulted in
high staff retention across the entire Group and outstanding
business performance over the past few years.

As creating the right ambience is essential to the dining
experience, we have also introduced a new store design concept,
the “Third Generation” of our widely recognised orange-themed
interior. Incorporating elements of street art, building materials
and architectural features that are unique and distinctly Hong
Kong, this Third-generation design not only highlights Hong
Kong's inimitable style, but also Fairwood’s strong roots in this
dynamic city. Holding true to these roots, we have sought out
young local artists to contribute to the design of our various
outlets, creating a more appealing experience for all of our
customers.

Going forward, we will strive to spread the “feel good” factor to
our customers, our staff and our community by providing a unique
and industry-leading dining environment, delicious food that
caters to customers’ increasingly healthy lifestyles and service that
is warm and friendly, enabling our staff to gain satisfaction and
enjoyment from serving our customers.
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Hong Kong

The business environment has always been highly challenging, yet
the Group has managed to perform favourably, driven by its
mission to ensure customers “Enjoy Great Food. Live a Great
Life!”, as well as a commitment to uphold the highest standards
of food quality and service. During the year, the Group had
maintained encouraging financial results with same-store sales
increased by approximately 4%, reflecting healthy and sustainable
organic growth.

Food safety and quality are our highest priority. Through global
sourcing and observing strict quality control procedures, including
regular third-party laboratory testing and examination of
ingredients; our Food Quality and Quality Control Department has
ensured that our customers not only enjoy delicious cuisine, but
also be assured that our food is of the highest quality and meets
stringent safety standards. Consequently, we have steadily
strengthened customers’ confidence and trust in our food.

Our attention to detail also extends to other facets of our business,
such as cost control and improving overall efficiency. Through our
global sourcing strategy and upgrading of the Central Food
Processing Plant, we are able to promptly respond to market
conditions and raise food preparation efficiency respectively.
Furthermore, flexible scheduling of our workforce enables us to
better utilise human resources. From these and other efforts, we
have been able to reduce costs and minimise food wastage, as well
as improve labour efficiency, leading to the
streamlining of business operations and a
corresponding increase in margin and
profitability.
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We have persisted in aggressive expansion of our presence in
Hong Kong. Our casual Japanese-Western concept restaurant,
ASAP, has also continued its development. Having been favourably
received by young families, this new business model has been
deemed a success, and a second ASAP restaurant was opened in
January 2017. Another new specialty restaurant offering
contemporary Taiwanese cuisine was officially launched in April
2017, with a second restaurant set to open in August 2017.

Mainland China

With respect to the Mainland China market, we now focused on
developing the Group’s presence in Southern China, particularly in
the residential areas of Guangzhou and Shenzhen. We trust that
this is the right course to pursue in nurturing the growth of our
Mainland China operations and maintaining sustainable
development. Continuing alignment with strategies deployed in
Hong Kong, we have introduced the “Feel Good Movement” to
Mainland China. We remain cautiously optimistic about our
business prospects in Mainland China, and will expand as and
when opportunities arise.
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During the year, same-store sales growth was slightly decreased
by approximately 1% in local currency due to the sluggish
economy in Mainland China and fierce competition. In May 2016,
Mainland China tax authority replaced all business tax (BT) of the
food catering industry with value-added tax (VAT). This change
helps to improve the operating margin of our Mainland China
operation.

NETWORK

During the year under review, the Group has opened 20 new
stores, including 18 in Hong Kong and two in Mainland China. As
of 31 March 2017, the Group has a total of 134 stores in
operation in Hong Kong, including 125 fast food stores and nine
specialty restaurants. In Mainland China, the Group operates nine
stores.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

In addition to our commitment to serving Fairwood customers, we
are also committed to giving back to the community. Towards this
objective, we have been distributing “Care for Seniors” cards to
express our appreciation to senior citizens for their contributions
to society. Since the introduction of this campaign back in 2014,
we have distributed approximately 60,000 cards, in addition to
offering menus and amenities that cater to the elderly and the
physically challenged, such as priority seating with movable seats,
under table hooks, handrails in toilets and non-glare menu boards
for easier legibility.

To help other members of the community, we have organised a
variety of activities, including the “Fairwood $4 Meal Campaign”
and “Fairwood Warm Caring Campaign”, among other efforts.
Furthermore, as a responsible member of the fast food industry,
we have engaged community ambassadors in order to gain a
deeper understanding of how to better accommodate the needs
of different communities and their members. We have
subsequently garnered a number of industry awards in recognition
of our efforts, which include the HKACE Customer Service
Excellence Award 2016.
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PROSPECTS

Moving forward, our primary focus will be on developing our core
business in Hong Kong, which will involve aggressive expansion.
As for our specialty restaurants, we will continue to improve our
new concepts and expand their associated networks in the year
ahead.

Most importantly, we will further strengthen our Fairwood Team
by offering training and development programmes and by
providing rewarding career paths, so as to retain existing
employees while also attracting new talent. Through promoting a
happy culture, renovating our outlets to create a vibrant
atmosphere and introducing more healthy and tasty food options
that cater to people of all ages and backgrounds, we will provide
a happy dining experience, sustain long-term growth and stay true
to our mission, ensuring that our customers “Enjoy Great Food.
Live a Great Life!”

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the management
team and the entire Fairwood workforce for their hard work and
dedication over the past year. | wish to also express my gratitude
to the many customers who visit our outlets every day, as they
provide us with the motivation to work even harder. Last but not
least, | would like to offer my appreciation to all of our
shareholders and business partners for their unwavering
commitment and trust in the Group.

ERE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

HITEE
Executive Chairman

BB ZFE—tFAA=Z+=H
Hong Kong, 22 June 2017
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2017, total assets of the Group were HK$1,204.4
million (2016: HK$1,141.8 million). The Group’s working capital
was HK$207.7 million (2016: HK$259.9 million), represented by
total current assets of HK$625.0 million (2016: HK$656.2 million)
against total current liabilities of HK$417.3 million (2016:
HK$396.3 million). Current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against total current liabilities, was 1.5 (2016: 1.7).
Total equity was HK$715.3 million (2016: HK$676.3 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2017, the
Group had bank deposits and cash amounting to HK$503.0
million (2016: HK$548.6 million), representing a decrease of 8.3%.
Most bank deposits and cash were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi.

At 31 March 2017, the Group continued to maintain a healthy
financial position and had total bank loans of HK$3.6 million (2016:
HK$6.6 million) denominated in Hong Kong dollars. All of the
Group’s bank borrowings were subject to the floating rate basis
and the maturity of borrowings are up to 2019. The unutilised
banking facilities were HK$190.1 million (2016: HK$215.6
million). The gearing ratio of the Group dropped to 0.5% (2016:
1.0%), which was calculated based on the total bank loans over
total equity.

PROFITABILITY

Return on average equity was 29.5% (2016: 29.6%), being profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company before the net
gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, capital expenditure was approximately HK$174.5
million (2016: HK$137.5 million), which was mainly for the
renovation works for new and existing shops. The increase was
mainly due to more stores opened compared to last year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group’s financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at banks and other financial assets that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As United States
dollar is pegged to Hong Kong dollar, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 March 2017, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$1.4 million (2016: HK$1.5 million) and no
bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or banking
facilities.

COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2017
were HK$14.1 million (2016: HK$22.3 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2017, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities
extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
these guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn down by all
the subsidiaries that are covered by these guarantees, being
HK$85.5 million (2016: HK$79.1 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and there is no transaction price.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

At 31 March 2017, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 5,300 (2016: 4,900). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$801.5 million (2016: HK$736.3 million).
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 65, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course on
food and beverage management at New York University. After
completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo returned to
Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company. Mr
Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited
which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 63, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr Chan received a
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University of
Manitoba, Canada in 1977 and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau in
1987. Mr Chan has over 30 years' experience in marketing. Prior
to joining the Group, He worked as a senior executive for a
restaurant group which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr Chan joined the Group
in 1995. He was appointed a Director of the Company in January
1998 and was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 1 January 2009. Mr Chan is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 50, is the Executive Director and
Company Secretary of the Company. Ms Mak holds a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Economics, a Master of Science Degree in
Finance and a Master Degree in Business Administration. She is an
Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators as
well as a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms Mak has extensive experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Prior to joining the
Company, she had held senior management positions in several
companies the securities of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Ms Mak joined the Company in 2004 and was
appointed Executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company on 1 January 2010. She is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ng Chi Keung, aged 68, was re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6 June
2017. He is also Members of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Ng holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration. He is an Associate Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr Ng has over
30 years' experience in finance and management. Prior to joining
the Group, he held senior management positions with a number
of well-known local and overseas multinational companies. Mr Ng
joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed an Executive Director
of the Company in November 1995. He was re-designated as a
Non-executive Director of the Company from 1 January 2010
following his retirement from the Group. At the same time, Mr Ng
was also appointed as a member of the Audit Committee and
remains as a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Mr Ng is an Independent Non-executive Director of
Soundwill Holdings Limited which is listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 69, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He
is also a Member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Chan
graduated from The University of Hong Kong, the University of
Strathclyde and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of
Business Administration Degree and a Master of Education
Degree. He is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resource Management and The Hong Kong Professional
Counselling Association. Mr Chan has over 40 years’ experience in
human resources development in public, commercial and
educational sectors and is actively engaged in the professional
development of higher education student affairs practitioners and
high school careers teachers in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 64, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2000. He is also Members of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr Lau holds a Doctorate
Degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, an MBA Degree from the University of
Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified
Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over 12 years of
management and accounting experience in the private and public
sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. Dr
Lau is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of Giordano
International Limited which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of the Advisory
Committees on management and marketing at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing at
City University of Hong Kong.
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Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo, aged 52, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in November
2008. He is also a Member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr Tsoi graduated from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada with an Honours Degree in Business
Administration in 1986. Mr Tsoi was formerly an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of Varitronix International
Limited and Executive Director of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited
(formerly known as “ReOrient Group Limited”) which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange. He was also formerly the
Deputy Chairman of the supervisory board of Data Modul AG,
which is listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

Mr Peter Wan Kam To, aged 64, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2009. He is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Wan is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He was a
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong & China firm and
a practicing accountant in Hong Kong for over 30 years with
extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. Mr Wan is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely China Resources Land Limited, Dalian Port (PDA) Company
Limited, Harbin Bank Co., Ltd., Huaneng Renewables Corporation
Limited, Kerry Logistics Network Limited, KFM Kingdom Holdings
Limited, S. Culture International Holdings Limited, Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. and Target Insurance (Holdings)
Limited while holding the position of Independent Non-executive
Director of China World Trade Centre Co., Ltd. which is listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr Wan is also the Treasurer and
Council Member of the Open University of Hong Kong. Mr Wan
was formerly an Independent Director of Mindray Medical
International Limited (a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, USA) and RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (@ company listed
on the NASDAQ).
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Canon'’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP
Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
137 and 138 of the annual report.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Business Review” and “Prospects”
set out on pages 10 to 15 of this annual report while the risk
management policy is on pages 45 to 49 of the Corporate
Governance Report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 3(b) to the financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING

As part of the community, the Group strikes to support the
environmental protection works, to strictly comply with the
relevant rules and regulations and to consider the material aspects
of our stakeholders. The comprehensive information related to our
operating principles on our employees, food quality and safety,
environment and customers will be further discussed in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which will be
published in the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in due
course.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of
revenue and purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30% (2016: less than
30%) of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK34.0 cents (2016: HK31.0 cents and a
special interim dividend of HK9.0 cents) per share was paid on 30
December 2016. The Board now recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK58.0 cents (2016: HK55.0 cents) per share and
a special final dividend of HK50.0 cents (2016: HK45.0 cents) per
share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$23,000 (2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company issued
658,000 ordinary shares of the Company pursuant to share option
schemes and purchased 239,500 shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange. Shares were repurchased during the year to
reduce the dilutive effect of granting share options. Details of
movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

Save as set out in note 23(c)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$360,871,000 (2016: HK$331,050,000). After the end of the
reporting period, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK58.0 cents (2016: HK55.0 cents) per share and a special final
dividend of HK50.0 cents (2016: HK45.0 cents) per share
amounting to HK$137,337,000 (2016: HK$126,745,000). The
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Chi Keung (re-designated from Non-executive Director to
Independent Non-executive Director on
6 June 2017)

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

In accordance with Bye-laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company,
Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and Mr
Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company

Z£F%  Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000
FREA Chan Chee Shing 800,000
=& Mak Yee Mei 1,040,000

- — 55,435,384 — 55,544,384 43.68%
(FRET)
(Note 1)
- - - 700,000 1,500,000 1.18%
- - - 360,000 1,400,000 1.10%

BEET - it & B% 19 FA Neblett Investments Limited
(TNeblett|) K CFJ Holdings Limited ([ CFJ )
A ZERRADRIBEMENERIB L E
AMEEREROETMERES - BR
BREREERZEEANTBEERER
iR - X FARNRARNNITER - BIF
BV Neblett 2 CFIFTH5 A B {0 HOHERS -
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Note 1: These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited (“Neblett”)
and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ"). The companies are beneficially
owned by two separate trusts of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a
discretionary object. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest
in the trusts as a discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman
of the Company, was deemed interested in the shares held by Neblett
and CFJ.
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AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")
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Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
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290,857
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([Pengto ) 5 5H - ZARR—EAEREG
SERMBERZHRNETHERES -
BB ERAERZETONERREY
SR XNEBARANHAITER - K
R VEHE A Pengto FTHS A RN MO % o

LR E S RER

B bt o X[ B Acaat 8] —EnPr iR B8
SN RN R BB RS 5 RIS 352 R IR E
BENECMER  RREETRINE
T AAARR RBERZ AR R _F—
tF=ZA=1+—B ARBEFHEST
KA Bt P E AL @B R im + A\ BREY
T REA AR A E FEARREE
(A EEFGPIEXVEAENER) B
Bty ~ MERARR 1) Sk B AR O i 2

A -

EERERTRABREBARRBEER
ST RSB ER T B AR
FHEl—f e

Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited (“Pengto”), a
company beneficially owned by a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of
his interest in the trust as a discretionary object and as the Executive
Chairman of the Company, was deemed interested in the shares held
by Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the
section “Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2017,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which had been entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under the
Company'’s share option scheme are also set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company maintained two share option schemes, namely, the
2002 Option Scheme and 2011 Option Scheme. The 2002 Option
Scheme was terminated on 7 September 2011 but the options
that have been granted and remained outstanding as of that date
under such scheme remain effective.

As at 31 March 2017, there was no outstanding option under the
2002 Option Scheme; as such only the 2011 Option Scheme was
maintained. Details of these schemes are as follows:

(a) 2002 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Option Scheme was to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company'’s businesses; to provide additional incentives to any
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant,
agent, representative, advisor, supplier of goods or services,
customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture partner (the
“2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote
the long term financial success of the Company by aligning
the interests of option holders to shareholders of the
Company.

Under the 2002 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director) or any of
the 2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee to take up
options to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
which shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer and (iii) the nominal value of a
share. The maximum entitlement for any one participant
under the 2002 Option Scheme shall not in any 12 months
period up to the date of grant exceed 1% of the Company’s
shares in issue.

On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated the 2002
Option Scheme and adopted the 2011 Option Scheme on the
same date. As a result of the termination, no further options
may be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme but the
options that have been granted and remained outstanding as
of that date under such scheme remain effective. After 22
June 2017, there is no outstanding option under the 2002
Option Scheme.
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The purpose of the 2011 Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company'’s businesses; to provide incentives or rewards to any
employee, Director (including Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Director) or officer of any member
of the Group or any related trust or company (the “2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the
interests of option holders to shareholders of the Company.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any of the 2011 Option Scheme
Qualifying Grantee to take up options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price which shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer; (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of
offer and (jii) the nominal value of a share.

As at 22 June 2017, the total number of shares available for
issue under the 2011 Option Scheme is 6,173,528 shares
which represented approximately 4.83% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at that date. The maximum
entitlement for any one participant under the 2011 Option
Scheme shall not in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.

The life of the 2011 Option Scheme is 10 years commencing
on 7 September 2011 and expiring on 6 September 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Directors and
employees of the Group had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31
March 2017 was HK$31.20 (2016: HK$26.45)) granted for HK$1
consideration under the 2002 Option Scheme and 2011 Option
Scheme respectively. As at 31 March 2017, the total grant date
fair value of unexercised vested options and unvested options,
measured in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(r) to the financial statements, amounted to HK$7,177,000 (2016:
HK$8,006,000) under the 2011 Option Scheme. The options are
unlisted. Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of HK$1 each of the Company.
Assuming that all the options outstanding as at 31 March 2017
are exercised, the Company will receive proceeds of
HK$110,380,000 (2016: HK$126,652,000).

(i) 2002 Option Scheme

€8 —F——F —T-ZFRANA
Employee TANE  EZE-NFRANR
9May 2011 (FzE)

9May 2012

t08May 2019

(Note)

160,000 - -

(160,000) - 10.88 10.82 37.65

Mis: BRES RS 20%EUTHMEE -
F-HR-_ZT-—FRANARE £
HR-ZZ—=FRANBEE F=HR
—EZ-NFERANERE FEEN-F
—FFhANBREREE R _Z—
NERANBERE -
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Note:  These options shall vest in five tranches of 20% each with the 1st
tranche on 9 May 2012, 2nd tranche on 9 May 2013, 3rd tranche on
9 May 2014, 4th tranche on 9 May 2015 and the last tranche on 9
May 2016.



MEBziEstE (&) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(i) =T ——FBERETE (ii) 2011 Option Scheme

BER(EF) —ZT-T% ZE-REF 700,000 - - - 700,000 20.70 20.80 -
Chan Chee Shing mAZ=+H mA-BE
(Director) 20 April 2015 St -3
ZA=t+-8
GEX)

1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022

(Note 2)
BEB(EE) —T-A1f ZERF 400,000 - - (40,000) 360,000 20.70 20.80 38.00
Mak Yee Mei mA=+H mA—BZE
(Director) 20 April 2015 e S
ZB=+-8
GES)

1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022

(Note 2)

B8 (Mzx1) “T-1F NS 40,000 - - - 40,000 20.70 20.80 -
Employee (Note 1)  FA=+H mA-AZE
20 April 2015 k- St : 3
—f=+-8
GE?S)

1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022

(Note 2)

== —Z-0F —2-RF 4,830,000 - (204,000) (458,000) 4,168,000 20.70 20.80 30.78
Employees mA=+H mA—-BAZ
20 April 2015 —ZE-—F
—A=t+-8
GEX)

1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022
(Note 2)

EE —Z-1F “E-RE 60,000 - - - 60,000 22.20 21.90 -
Employee +AZH +A—-A%
2 October 2015 k- St -3

(GEE)

1 October 2016 to
30 September 2022
(Note 3)
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MR HERTR (2) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(i) —E——FBEREE () (ii) 2011 Option Scheme (continued)
MizE1 - BIEASLEEABNITRIBNEARADATNITE Note 1: Mr Lo Fai Shing, Francis who holds the position of Executive Manager,
BRRABREZRT is also the son of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, Executive Chairman of the
Company;
MiFE2: BIRES DR ATRHREE: 10% Note 2: These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 April
R-ZZE—XRFENWA—HEB 15%R 2016, 15% on 1 April 2017, 20% on 1 April 2018, 25% on 1 April
-+t FHA-—BEBEB 20%% 2019 and the remaining 30% on 1 April 2020; and
ZE-NFHOA-—BHE 25%R
—E-NFNA-HEBREHBT30%R
—TTFNA—HBHRE &k
WMo WRES AHZRUTHESEEB: 10% Note 3: These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 October
R—ZZTE—X"F+HA—A 3% 15% A 2016, 15% on 1 October 2017, 20% on 1 October 2018, 25% on 1
ZE—+tF+A—HBEB 20%RN October 2019 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2020.

—“NE+A-BHBB 25%R
—E-NE+A-HHEB RSB F30%R
“ECTETA-HEE

BHECDETERENSTHREMTMERME  Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
IREFHENER - DRIEIARITBHKRME  and the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(r)
1(r)(ii) K fI £ 20 © (i) and note 20 to the financial statements respectively.

B FatEoh - AREERNEMER - XA Fsk  Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the

HAEMMB ARG EL2EEM T - BFEARLN  Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to

FEE  HeTHABREMAAE S ET  enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of

SRR F 2 A AE B AR A B s B {E [ 485:  their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire

EB(EREELSGEOIMEMNTESE) WAk E.  benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

BEEEmEE - Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company, were as follows:

() Neblett (FtzE1) (i)
(i) CF (ii)
(iii) Winning Spirit International (iii)

Corp. (TWSIC ) (Fft5E1)
(iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited (iv)

(THITL)) (B7E2)

Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 38.36%
CFJ 6,660,000 5.24%
Winning Spirit International
Corp. (“WSIC™) (Note 1) 48,775,384 38.36%
HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HITL") (Note 2) 55,452,384 43.61%

a1 S EZHER St Neblett EEFEZR
3 o WSIC #E B Neblett #] 100% 1z + #H1R &
HA Neblett FTEEIFBRM AR - &

W2 KHTLE AR EMET 2 ZEAMES 17,000
B&AD 5N - 1t %5 e 25 45 /8 [R] — #k £3 Neblett 2 CF)
BEEFEZRG -HTLAMEREREG LA
BRI ARIEESHENETZZTA  HE
WSIC & CFIH) 100% 5 iR A A %M
FARFTEEFE RN R o

LA ESHRER

B EMRPAEEN RZEB—+F=RA=+—
B - RARRIBRE S RG] 5 336 IR E M H
TFRV B RO ATEL - I MBUR A A B () SR AERE
Bein ey H A as soK B o

BALRIBERE
RERNFHRTEBARBAESRESAAE
MAFRER  ARRMDAERBRMC(ESZ L™
MRAD (T EMRA ) FIEENRRIFRE -

Note 1: These interests represented the same block of shares directly held by
Neblett. WSIC owned 100% interest in Neblett and was therefore deemed
interested in the shares directly held by Neblett; and

Note 2: Except for 17,000 shares held by HITL as trustee for other trusts, these

interests represented the same block of shares directly held by Neblett and
CFJ. HITL, in its capacity as a trustee of two separate trusts of which Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is the founder and discretionary object, owned 100%
interest in WSIC and CFJ and was therefore deemed interested in the
shares directly held by these companies.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
March 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The particulars of continuing connected transaction of the Group
is set out below in compliance with the reporting requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony”)

As detailed in note 27(c) to the financial statements, FFFL leased a
property from Hibony for three years from 1 March 2015 for the
operation of a fast food restaurant. As Hibony is an associate of
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company), the entering
into the lease constituted continuing connected transaction for
the Company. Details of rent and deposits paid by FFFL relating to
the property for the above transaction are as follows:

KFEEFEHE Rent for the year 3,036 3,036
Heke Rental deposits 759 759

REBETRAUNEUAEEHE DIREBE 5
BEBXH([BRARZ)MRTE  BIFNTE
ZCEMERERERS

() E—MREABEGERTET:
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(i) 585555 1 52 55 9 15 5 T L 0 K (1
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%) 857 R
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In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in connection
with the above continuing connected transaction with Hibony (the
“Transaction”), the Independent Non-executive Directors have
reviewed and confirmed that the Transaction has been entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of agreement governing the
Transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transaction for the year ended 31
March 2017 has not exceeded the maximum aggregate
annual value.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")
(continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transaction under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the continuing connected transaction and material
related party transactions are set out in “Continuing connected
transaction” on pages 34 and 35 and in note 27 to the financial
statements respectively.

Save for the above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the Group's business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share option schemes as set out in this annual report,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes as set out in this annual report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that required the Company to enter
into an agreement that would or might result in the Company
issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company did not
issue any debenture.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Bye-law of the Company, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

BANK LOANS

Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 March 2017 are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 139 of the
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 140 of the annual report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, save and except that
the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation, details
of which and the reasons for the deviation are stated below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors of the Company (the “Directors”).
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors have taken decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of all Directors, as such, it has adopted
terms of reference for corporate governance functions that are in
line with the CG Code.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior
management of the Company. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
above-mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")

Ng Chi Keung (re-designated from Non-executive Director to
Independent Non-executive Director on
6 June 2017)

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The representation of INEDs is
more than one third of the Board. A list containing the names of
the Directors with their roles and functions has been published on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 19 to 22
of this annual report. There is no relationship among directors of
the Board and in particular, between the Executive Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any
relationship or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgment of the INEDs. Accordingly,
the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent.

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2017 and attendance record of each Director is set out
below:
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BYFIITES
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Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mak Yee Mei 4/4

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin 4/4
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 4/4
Peter Wan Kam To 3/4
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All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditor of
the Company about their responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Company is set out on pages 51 to 58 in the
independent auditor’s report. The Directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, confirm that there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt
upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by attending training courses or by reading materials to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and skills of a director of a listed corporation.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Chan Chee Shing respectively
whose roles are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years;
however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board considers that
the exemption of both the Chairman and the Managing Director (the
Chief Executive Officer) of the Company from such retirement by
rotation provisions would provide the Group with strong and
consistent leadership, efficient use of resources, effective planning,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies and
business plans. The Board believes that it would be in the best
interest of the Company for such Directors to continue to be
exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws to appoint any
person as a director of the Company either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are available at the
website of the Company.

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors (other than any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director) for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
provided that each Director (other than any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director) including those appointed for
a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

Currently, all INEDs are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the
shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with the CG
Code and available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies and
recommends to the Board suitable candidate(s) to stand for
election by shareholders at annual general meeting, or when
necessary, to fill vacancies on the Board.

Under the policy for diversity, appointment of Board members will
be made on merit with due regard of benefits of diversity on the
Board such as having differences in the skills, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, gender, age and
other qualities of directors. The Board believes that the policy will
promote effective decision-making and better governance and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions
to corporate issues.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HITES Executive Director

BHEE (EEZ) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 171

BAFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

2| B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 171

FE8H Peter Wan Kam To 11
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Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs,
Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and Mr Ng Chi
Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Remuneration Committee adopts
written terms of reference that are in line with the CG Code and
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration
Committee met once to review the remuneration of Directors and
the attendance record of each member is as follows:

BAFBITES
BRECSE (X /%)
e

FHTES
RE8

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 171
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 1”7
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises four INEDs, Mr Ng Chi
Keung, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr
Peter Wan Kam To. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Peter
Wan Kam To and meets at least twice a year with the Company’s
auditor.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditors
or external auditors before submission to the Board for approval.
It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature of the
external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has written terms of reference which are in line with
the CG Code and are available on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management’s
responses; and to evaluate the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

BAFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

FIE(EE) Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 212

PREEE Joseph Chan Kai Nin 2/2

BERZ Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/2

FHITES Non-executive Director

RER Ng Chi Keung 2/2
KIFEEEERAA

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditor of the Company were as follows:

hH S E R B Review fee for interim results 530 530
SEREEREE Audit fee for final results 3,209 3.115
BIRREREAS RRERN Non-audit services which covered
IEEZ RS provision of tax compliance services 350 643
kel Total 4,089 4,288
NEWE COMPANY SECRETARY
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Ms Mak Yee Mei is the Company Secretary and Executive Director
of the Company. As the Company Secretary, Ms Mak supports the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
the Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. During the year ended 31 March 2017, she
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeqguard the Group’s assets. The Board annually reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee oversees risk management, financial
reporting and internal control systems. With delegation from the
Board, Audit Committee conducts annual review on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The Internal Audit Department is an independent function that
reports directly to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department has unrestricted access to information that allows it
to review all aspects of the Board'’s risk management, control and
governance processes. It provides independent, objective
assurance and consulting services on risk and internal control. On
a regular basis, the Internal Audit Department reports to the Board
through the Audit Committee.

Management is responsible to allocate resources for the risk
management and internal control systems, so that the risks can be
reduced to acceptable levels when achieving the Group’s business
objectives. Management identifies and evaluates the risks across
the Group, implements risk mitigation plans and reviews their
effectiveness, conducts annual review on the risk management
and internal control systems and ensures compliance with CG
Code. Management hence provides a confirmation to the Board
on the effectiveness of these systems.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The risk management policy was approved by the Board as an
effective and adequate approach to be applied across the Group
to manage the risks associated with its business and operations.
Based on the risk management policy, the Board acknowledges its
overall responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The policy is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY (continued)

EEEMKEEHETER  The Board, Audit Committee and management review the risk

BERWE  AREERBIZE  LUWREAKREIE  levels, as well as the effectiveness of risk management and internal
MAMEIE RS ER - ABREERIEMNE  control systems, through implementation of the risk management

EREMTE R ©

policy. The following diagram illustrates the key processes and
features adopted under the risk management policy.

FERER

Phase 1:

FEPEER -

Phase 2:

B

Phase 3:

SRR

Phase 4:

FBHMER

Phase 5:

BB

Phase 6:

2, B 8

Risk identification

Risk appetite
formulation

B R AT R

Risk assessment
and measurement

TREREER

Key risk register

JFB| Bk B 5% A1 BB 4R

Risk monitoring
and reporting

wRE

Disclosure

BIREBRETE L BERR
EREGREFERRESE
Management identifies potential risks
Management prepares a key risk list

EEgtiTRREE

B IR E R E R g R (IR 2E

The Board formulates risk appetite level
Management establishes the risk assessment criteria

B BT B AR A AT IR R
EREXAZEERRKTEETAT
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Management scores the likelihood and consequence of its occurrence
Management prioritises key risks

Audit Committee and the Board review the risk assessment result

B IR B O T R B R A S B TR T
EREREESRRRET S MEETR

Management develops risk mitigation and treatment plan
Management registers such risk and mitigation measures

B 12 [ B BS B m RE N B B R 4B F B R B
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NEEFTABLEEBARENSERE  UEHRAEZEZEGRIER
W&
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Management monitors the progress and effectiveness of risk mitigation
actions

Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing risk-based
auditing as independent appraisal of risk management and internal
control systems

Internal auditors prepare consolidated audit report to Audit Committee
on significant findings on regular basis

Management, Audit Committee and the Board review the risk monitoring
and mitigation result

EZZESRBEREBNMAEASBMIEHONER  BREEETHRTE
Audit Committee ensures compliance to mandatory disclosure
requirement, with support from Management and Internal Audit
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The policy for handling inside information sets out guidelines and
procedures to directors and managerial staff to ensure inside
information is to be handled with prudence and disseminated to
the public in equal and timely manner. In communicating with
external parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond
to enquiries in allocated areas of issues. Briefing sessions were
held regularly for managerial staff to facilitate their understanding
and compliance with the policy.

RISKS OF THE GROUP

In 2016, the Group conducted an annual risk assessment based
on the Group's risk management policy to evaluate the potential
risks relevant to existing and further business environment of the
Group. Four major types of risks were covered, namely strategic
risk, operational risk, regulatory risk and financial risk. The goals of
the assessment are to identify, evaluate and manage the level of
risks the Group faces in existing and future business environment.
During the assessment, the Group assessed: (i) the significant risks
of the Group; (i) changes in the nature and extent of the
significant risks since 2016; and (iii) action plans and controls
designed to mitigate risks and reduce them to an acceptable level.
The result of risk assessment, as endorsed by management and
the Audit Committee, has been presented to the Board for review.

The top three significant risks being identified and being managed
by the Group are:

Food Safety

In food industry, there are always potential threats in food safety
and quality. The food industry has seen cases of food
contamination, due to reasons ranging from the raw material of
food source, processing and storage in supplier plant and
environmental impact. To ensure our food safety and quality, the
Group will continue to conduct food safety audit and look for
area of enhancement in more stringent food safety audit in all
areas of operation. Supply chain management is also leveraged to
mitigate the food safety incident brought about by supplier. The
Group will continue to implement food tracking system to ensure
fast and accurate food tracking and recall in case of any food
safety incidents.
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RISKS OF THE GROUP (continued)
Labour Shortage

Shortage of labour has brought pressure to labour market,
especially in labour-intensive industries such as ours. Labour also
has a broad range of choices in career. To address this risk, the
Group will continue to automate operations, in order to reduce
the pressure on labour. To retain employees, the Group will also
continue to look for area for improvement in working conditions
in our operations. Flexible working hours will also be considered
for operations if feasible.

Supply Chain Disruption

Any disruption of a food item or a supplier can impact the choice
of food menu and operation. With our diverse food menu choices
and strong network of suppliers, this risk poses no immediate
threats to the Group, yet the Group keeps a close eye on the
diversity and management of supply chain.

Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 March 2017.
During the annual review, the Audit Committee has also
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
internal audit, accounting and financial reporting function. The
Board and the Audit Committee considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are effective and no
significant areas of concern have been identified.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company's developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly.
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HEFENRERBE (&) INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
(continued)

FEEFHEEENRZZ—"FNA/NBEIT  All Directors had attended the annual general meeting of the

ZRRBFRE - EHERsEAT - Company held on 8 September 2016 with the attendance record
as follows:

HITES Executive Directors

#FAEG (HTTEE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 11
BRAERK (7T BAREL) Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 11
BT Mak Yee Mei 1/1
FHITES Non-executive Director

RER Ng Chi Keung 11
BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

PR EL4F Joseph Chan Kai Nin 11
2| B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 171
BERZE Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 11
FiRE Peter Wan Kam To 11

RARBIIE EEHRR A BHRBKRERRIAR  Procedures on how shareholders can convene a special general

G2EF  REARERG FIRE2FZZIEF  meeting, put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings and

ERFREBESEEAZIRFHERRNE - propose a person for election as a director are also available at
Company's website for shareholders’ information.

RARHRBEHEIEERREGRBEHEE WL As a channel to further promote effective communication, the

BFHAERFEMATEMIEMIM B RIET  Company’'s website is maintained to disseminate corporate

BHEBER - information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.

HREEXH CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

RARGHOABERRARARIGZERAE  The Company has published an up-to-date consolidated version of

FIEHA AR B LB A FTRIA8E - 82 —ZF—+  its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws on the websites of

FZA=Z+—HILFEAN - AREHEBEEX  the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended 31

A ) o March 2017, there has been no change to these Company's
constitutional documents.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 59 to 138, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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RBFEFER Key audit matters

MREtEEESBEERMNEELE - 2452Y%  Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

REG A BEHREN BT RAEEMEE = judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the

HEIFRERMBHEEGAMBHRERT A consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

SREETEIEN - AT ELSEAEIEM  matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

BENBER - consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Y - BBANREREERE

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment

BRRREE I FMAN A 10 RE74EE 75 A&7 BE

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 74 to 75

BEREETEE BN ETOMEEZER
The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

TEERRAREMBUERNRF@HEEEERE RMATHHYE ESNRENEERENEHIETFE
MRBBRTE - Bt B TEENYE  BENR EC

(BREESMERRTE  RE - ZRERGMIXEAR e e
KB WEAETEEEFBCLEEELNAXEeRE * FEEEBYNENSOEN ZEEEEHEHE

N =

HEER YL MR A AR T o BOFARBESRANTEE AR EENREERE

Y2ESHEAMNER  FEEREERRTRARS
EEEESREPRENENEBRNRER - UEEER MOMEFRAN A - JATEREREMRER
REFHAETARRTRENEARRRE ((HFR]) - HRDERFEE O EATHRARERRL
ELPRELRE

— EEXBE FHERSERSKEER:
— HERBLLE—FTR10% A EMERE 3K
— FHEIFEEIMERE -

Local economic conditions and the level of Our audit procedures to assess the potential
competition from other similar restaurants impact impairment of property, plant and equipment included
the performance of the Group’s fast food the following:

restaurants. Therefore there is a risk that the value ) . o

of property, plant and equipment, which generally ¢ evaluating management’s identification of

comprises leasehold improvements, equipment, air impairment indicators and considering whether the
conditioning systems and cutlery and utensils, in discounted cash flow forecasts on a restaurant-by-
certain restaurants may not be recoverable in full restaurant basis supported the carrying value of
through the future cash flows to be generated from the relevant assets and assessing the methodology
the operations of those restaurants or from disposal adopted by management in its preparation of the
of the related property, plant and equipment. discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to

the requirements of the prevailing accounting
Management reviews the performance of individual standards. We also considered whether the
restaurants at the end of each reporting period to management’s impairment assessments indicated
identify if any restaurant meets certain negative that a reversal previously recognised impairment
performance criteria (“indicators”) which could was required;

indicate impairment. Such indicators include:

— operating losses sustained by restaurants that
are more than a year old,;

— decreases in sales in a restaurant by at least
10% compared with the prior year; or

— plans to close a restaurant.
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RAPMNBT N AEEZEE
How the matter was addressed in our audit
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BREETER
The key audit matter

RAPMNBTNAEEZEE
How the matter was addressed in our audit

54

Where indicators of impairment are identified, the
value in use of the property, plant and equipment in
these restaurants is determined by management on
a restaurant-by-restaurant basis based on a
discounted cash flow analysis.

The value in use model used to assess the risk of
impairment is based on a number of assumptions,
including estimations of future revenue, food cost
inflation, rental increments, staff cost inflation and
the discount rate applied.

We identified assessing potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter
because of the significance of property, plant and
equipment to the consolidated financial statements
and because of the significant management
judgement and estimation required, which can be
subjective.

RREEBHRAF]
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

comparing the actual performance and results of
the restaurants for the current year with the key
assumptions and forecasts adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow forecasts
for the prior year to assess the accuracy of
management’s forecasting process and making
enquiries of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified and whether these
were considered in the current year's key
assumptions and forecasts;

critically evaluating the key assumptions and
forecasts adopted by management in its
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts
by referring to industry and other available third
party information, recent financial performance of
the fast food operations and management'’s
budgets and plans for the operations in 2017 and
beyond;

assessing the discount rate used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar
listed catering groups in Hong Kong and Mainland
China and taking into consideration location and
company specific risk premiums;

obtaining management’s sensitivity analyses of the
discount rates, future revenue, food cost inflation,
rental increments and staff cost inflation and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment
charge for the year and whether there were any
indicators of management bias;

enquiring of the Chief Executive Officer about
plans for any restaurant closures; and

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment,
including the key assumptions and sensitivities to
changes in such assumptions, with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Mei Yan Hilary.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

HE_T—t+F=A=+—HIFE (LBBIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

WA Revenue 3(a) 2,580,904 2,427,973
$HE BN Cost of sales (2,181,429) (2,040,943)
ER Gross profit 399,475 387,030
HAb U A Other revenue 4 7,641 9,231
HfbEig FE8 Other net losses 4 (9,209) (8,417)
HEFEFENIEREEE  Net gain on disposal of non-current assets

W F R held for sale 13 - 11,710
HEER Selling expenses (24,453) (26,239)
THER Administrative expenses (121,533) (119,217)
WE - HEERFRER Impairment losses on property, plant and

REER equipment 10(d) (4,892) (8,916)
REMERBERES (EHE) Valuation gain/(loss) on investment

properties 10(a), 10(b) 2,510 (2,110)

Fed =0y Profit from operations 249,539 243,072
A B AN Finance costs 5(a) (94) 171)
BB AR R Profit before taxation 5 249,445 242,901
IRET Income tax 6(a) (44,164) (42,123)
AN TR IR R B4 Profit for the year attributable to

REERF equity shareholders of the Company 205,281 200,778
BREF Earnings per share 9
2R Basic 161.43ficents  158.62 1l cents
#E Diluted 159.11ficents  157.531licents

566X 5 138 B MY P 5 B AN B 15 R #) — &P
7 o RN AR R EEBIRORE NFFIFERTIN
Bt EE23(b) ©

The notes on pages 66 to 138 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company are set out in note 23(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_T—+F=A=+—HIFE UBBIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RN TR IR R R4 Profit for the year attributable to equity

RE BT shareholders of the Company 205,281 200,778
AEEHMPEIRE : Other comprehensive income for the year:
HEJBEER 15 Item that may be reclassified subsequently to

EmbyEE - profit or loss:
& R B A 3 B A A Exchange differences on translation of financial

M RERNEL 258 statements of subsidiaries in Mainland China (2,280) (2,266)
A ERER R RS Total comprehensive income for the year

rEEREKSAE attributable to equity shareholders

of the Company 203,001 198,512

N

F66EFE138ERMFEBATIEHREN—E  The notes on pages 66 to 138 form part of these financial

7] statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZE—+E=A=+—H (LUBEHIR)

At 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ERBEE Non-current assets
BEME Investment properties 41,180 38,670
Hib4% - #BNEE Other property, plant and equipment 453,715 378,955
S HERIEE AW Interests in leasehold land held for own
HE R use under operating leases 6,404 6,616
10(a) 501,299 424,241
Ha Goodwill 11 1,001 1,001
BEfffEeZe Rental deposits paid 69,089 51,670
EfemEE Other financial assets 12 7,885 8,405
EIETRIBEE Deferred tax assets 21(b) 145 306
579,419 485,623
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 14(a) 41,672 36,911
JRE LT B 30 R0 L th e TR Trade and other receivables 15 79,182 70,706
HtemEE Other financial assets 12 1,132 -
RITFRANERE Bank deposits and cash 16 502,979 548,607
624,965 656,224
REBAEE Current liabilities
JFEAST BR SRR E Ath FE 5T 3% Trade and other payables 17 393,514 363,860
WITEX Bank loans 18 1,720 3,053
FES ARERFR 1B Current tax payable 21(a) 9,370 16,102
A Provisions 22 12,642 13,320
417,246 396,335
REBEEEE Net current assets 207,719 259,889
EEHABERARBERE Total assets less current liabilities 787,138 745,512
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZ—tF=A=+—8 (ABBIT)
At 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EFBER Non-current liabilities
IRITER Bank loans 18 1,863 3,583
BEBIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 25,477 19,394
CWHe%ES Rental deposits received 1,310 2,007
R Provisions 22 43,196 44,190
71,846 69,174
EEFRE NET ASSETS 715,292 676,338
EARMEE Capital and reserves 23
&R Share capital 127,164 126,745
i Reserves 588,128 549,593
R TOTAL EQUITY 715,292 676,338

EFEGN_T—tF AT ZHRELA  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

W o June 2017.
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Chan Chee Shing
HITEE TTIECABE,
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

F66EF138EMNMMTEARIEHARE —2  The notes on pages 66 to 138 form part of these financial
5 o statements.

N
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BET—tF=A=1+—HIFE (ABBIIT)

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

R-Z-RFMA-A At 1 April 2015 126,341 8,948 1,974 4,831 768 457,302 600,164
BE-Z-1~F Changes in equity for year
=BA=t-HLEEE ended 31 March 2016:
MEZEE
REZHF Profit for the year - - - 200778 200,778
Hfozmie Other comprehensive income - - - (2,266) - - (2,266)
AEERANEASE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (2,266) - 200,778 198,512
RIBEMIET 23T Shares issued under share option
scheme 23(0)() 1,102 6,774 - - - - 7,876
BOER Issue expenses - (38) - - - _ (38)
TEEERAENRE Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - - (66,044)  (66,044)
AEEEERMRE Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (50,725) (50,725)
PUEZEENMRM AER  Equity-settled share-based
R 5 transactions 5(b), 23(c)(i) - 1,547 708 - - - 2,255
EEA G R 7 Repurchase of own shares
—BREE — par value paid 23(c)(i) (698) - - - - - (698)
—EfMEENRSKA — premium and transaction
costs paid 23(c)ii) - (14,964) - - - - (14,964)
T E T i R yes Release of land and buildings
Bo i MRSy revaluation reserve upon
BREEE disposal of land and buildings 13 - - - - (241) 241 -
W-E-AF=ZH=1+—-H At31March 2016 126,745 2,267 2,682 2,565 527 541,552 676,338
RZZ-XEMA-A At 1 April 2016 126,745 2,267 2,682 2,565 527 541,552 676,338
BE-2—t% Changes in equity for year
=ZA=t-HLFE ended 31 March 2017:
HEZE2E :
AEREA Profit for the year - - - - - 205281 205281
Hip2mEKE Other comprehensive income (2,280) = = (2,280)
AEERANGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (2,280) - 205,281 203,001
BB AT 212 /7A0R)  Shares issued under share option
scheme 23()i) 658 11,391 - - - - 12,049
BTER Issue expenses = (54) - - (54)
HEEEHENRS Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 23(b)ii) = - - - - (127,391) (127,391)
AEEEERNRS Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (43,317)  (43,317)
PR E R LAR D AR Equity-settled share-based
%5 transactions 5(b), 23(c)(i) - 556 1,266 - - 3 1,825
RS R Repurchase of own shares
—Ef@EE — par value paid 23(c)ii) (239) - - - - - (239)
—BTRENRZMA — premium and transaction
costs paid 23(c)ii) - (6,920) - - - - (6,920)
R-Z-tF=F=1+—H At31March2017 127,164 7,240 3,948 285 527 576,128 715,292

5566 £ 5 138 B K PY 5 B AN B 15 R #) — 8D
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The notes on pages 66 to 138 form part of

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BET—tF=A=1+—-HIFE (ABBIIT)
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

KRR Operating activities
B 354 Al ) Profit before taxation 249,445 242,901
FEIFE Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 5(c), 10(a) 87,135 78,657
LARETHEREAR  Amortisation of interests
M E i in leasehold land held
Bin for own use under
operating leases 5(c), 10(a) 212 212
YIE - HERFRER Impairment losses on
AEEE property, plant and
equipment 10(d) 4,892 8,916
HEFBFEMNIER  Net gain on disposal of
EFEEWTFE non-current assets held
for sale 13 - (11,710)
LAAREERTAIBZ  Change in fair value of
HEMSREERN other financial liabilities
AREEED at fair value through
profit or loss 5(a) (12) (66)
FEEA Interest expense 5(a) 106 237
FE WA Interest income 4 (7,641) (9,231)
B (#m), 512K E  Provision for long service
BR7% & 245 payments (reversed)/
made 22(a) (3,758) 7,699
BEYE - s Net loss on disposal of
RENEEFRE property, plant and
equipment 4 6,547 5,781
WEYHEME Valuation (gain)/loss on
(&) B investment properties 10(b) (2,510) 2,110
LARESS GBI LARR!D  Equity-settled share-based
BEBE S payment expenses 5(b) 1,825 2,255
BEELHEAKER Operating profit before
F changes in working
capital 336,241 327,761
EEESNEE Changes in working
capital:
FEOgEm, wmd (Increase)/decrease in
inventories (4,761) 1,606
ERHEEESEM Increase in rental deposits
paid (10,488) (7,370)
FELIQEEMfDﬁ’rHEFEH& Increase in trade and other
AN receivables (15,513) (2,978)
FEHEE SRR E A FERIER Increase in trade and other
0 payables 4,689 48,653
Ellﬁﬁiﬁzﬁi*bu Increase in rental deposits
received 210 51
E A RERSS%EME  Provision for long service
payments utilised 22(a) (1,419) (1,199)
EEREER AR  Provision for reinstatement
costs utilised 22(b) (2,214) (1,881)
REEBELMWESE  Cash generated from
operations 306,745 364,643
B U B Interest received 7,747 9,046
2AFE Interest paid (105) (237)
ERSESIEr Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (44,652) (36,182)
BETEELENERESFE Net cash generated from
s operating activities
carried forward 269,735 337,270
KRIFEEEERAA

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



FEREREBR

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BE—%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—tEF=A=+—BLFE (REEIIT)

EAEEEHESN  Net cash generated from
REFHE operating activities
brought forward 269,735 337,270
RETE Investing activities
BAHMESHEE Payment for purchase of
(R other financial asset (1,206) -
EAME - #22 Payment for purchase of
BYE property, plant and
equipment (144,519) (109,097)
BREME - HaRA Net proceeds from disposal
AP RIE of property, plant and
FEE equipment 284 18
A ERIE Maturity on financial asset - 89
HEZHEFENIER  Net proceeds from disposal
EEEMBSRIETF of non-current assets held
=8 for sale 13 - 30,993
=0 AZBEIEN Increase in bank deposits
TEBASRITF RGN with more than three
months to maturity (36,064) (43,146)
RETEFTAN Net cash used in investing
HE R activities (181,505) (121,143)
MEES Financing activities
RIERERR T 212577 Proceeds from shares issued
B iS008 under share option scheme  23(c)(i) 12,049 7,876
ﬁﬂx@ﬁﬁ@iﬁ’] Expenses incurred in
%M connection with the issue
of shares (54) (38)
5] B A% A7 1~ 3Kk Payment in relation to
repurchase of shares 23(c)(ii) (7,159) (15,662)
2R Dividends paid (170,708) (116,769)
EEBITER Repayment of bank loans (3,053) (4,387)
BMEEBFFAMIEE  Net cash used in financing
FH activities (168,925) (128,980)
ﬁﬁ?ﬁ] REZEEY Net (decrease)/increase in
WD), E R cash and cash equivalents (80,695) 87,147
AOA—HBHKEELM Cash and cash equivalents
REZEEY at 1 April 505,461 419,022
EXSBNEE Effect of foreign
exchange rate changes (997) (708)
R=A=+—H#W Cash and cash equivalents
ReNBEEEY at 31 March 16 423,769 505,461

g
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The notes on pages 66 to 138 form part of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIEZEERR - [RGB SIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
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1

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2017 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as
otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(©

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group's results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

6/



63

B S SRR I EE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRILAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Goodwill

(f)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to
each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note

1))

Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investment represents debt security that the
Group has the positive ability and intention to hold to
maturity. This investment is initially stated at fair value, which
is their transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below
and it is subsequently stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(1)).

(g) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Investment properties

(i)

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in the profit
or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 1(u)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(j)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied for other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 1().

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(1)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases (see
note 1(j)); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRILAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(i)
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold land and buildings
situated thereon

30-50 years

- Leasehold improvements The remaining term of

the tenancy leases
— Air-conditioning plant The remaining term of
the tenancy leases

—  Furniture and equipment 10%-20% per annum

— Motor vehicles 15% per annum

— Computer systems 25% per annum

— Others 10% per annum

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery and
utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent
replacements are charged to profit or loss in the year when
the expenditure is incurred.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(j) Leased assets (continued)

0)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 1(h)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

/1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRILAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEEBE(E) 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) FEUNRBRFXAN E b FE UL TR (k) Trade and other receivables
JRE L R R R LAt JE R IR A 7 (BB ¥ M6 T Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
R BB ABBRNZ XL EHK AR ER value and thereafter stated at amortised cost, using the
R EEE (2HME10) BFAENEE effective interest method less allowance for impairment of
ABR B A0FE WK R TR AL T B 5 3 TR doubtful debts (see note 1(l)), except where the receivables
EEEFBAHN R EERSIEFBLENL T are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
BARAIGIN c FEPBRT - EWRERER fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
AR ERBREEFEEMENESTEA immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
Bk o less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
() EERE () Impairment of assets
(i) UEBEREARNEWRER HMaE (i) Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
WRREMEmEENRE financial assets carried at amortised cost
AEEE GRS HREFAEERK Trade and other receivables and other financial assets that
AARREUEER - R R E are stated at amortised cost are reviewed at the end of
hemEE  UWEETRGHERTEN each reporting period to determine whether there is
BERR - BENEBIROEARE objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
BEXESREEUN TN —FRRZFRERE impairment includes observable data that comes to the
(R AT ERER B attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- BEBALREANHHEREE

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- ERAH BRI BHASE N — abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
K in interest or principal payments;

- (& AR 6L M G A A= o E 4th B — it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
BEHE & bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

- B w8 KBS EERREL — significant changes in the technological, market,
HHEEFABKAAZENER economic or legal environment that have an adverse
e o effect on the debtor.

72 RREEBHRAF]
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FEEHBE(Z) 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
BEBEE () Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) UBERAARNEVRIRR - HfibfE (i) Impairment of trade and other receivables and other

WRREMERMEENRE(E)
MREBEFAERIR - AEHKA
AR O FE MR~ E MR B B A
TREENRERRE  EREENK
HeEEZREREENREERT
RV HERELEERTENE
BRAZ) IR (RITRSERERY
B)WEFAKESRERE IR
ERAE - MIREB KSR SR
BEABRUNRRER - P8
B 38 B 0 % R 8 51 b 352 BT A 2R
B AEENFEEREETT - XF
HERENEMEENRKRESRE
ERBEZAFANRGELUEER
REFHNEERBEBRIBNHE

WRBERBBEEROMRERD - M
BEBLEREBBRERRELN
EHER  AERBREEERER
B REBEMNE R TREEERENR
EoREREENEFRERARRE
MREEENER T MEEN S

MEBESEZTHERNEE &
Sk AR AR U B S5K R EL ft E R )
WRRERNBRESETNS - HAk
EIERR SR 5 - BT 2] EEERE
AIRRIN - EERIBR T - RERBUEE
BERAEFBRKLE - EAKER
AW E B R] BE AR R - AR AT A]
Ug 00 ey B4R M6 & B 1 SH R MR K -
HZEREEMEERRAFENE
AHELEED - HRKEFATEA
EEENBRESEERERER - BH
AR A0 Lt 52 B A L 12 Wi [B] 2 i B 0
R BRI R et P RERR ©

financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss of trade and
other receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors included
within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(I) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in
the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

investments in subsidiaries; and

goodwill.

f any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(I) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measureable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m)Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the
asset is available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for investment
properties as explained below), are recognised at the lower of
their carrying amounts and fair value less costs to sell. For
investment properties, even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the policy set out in note
1(h).

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and
on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated.

(n) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

(p) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(t)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

(r) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(r) Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments
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The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share

premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

(s) Income tax
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(h),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.



1 EEEHEEE) 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() TEHMNIBIER  EHENFAEEE () Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

() SAEHNMBRER

(i) Financial guarantees issued

MBEERENFTEMERERITA
(BMERA) AT EFIR » A EZ
EROZSEA(HEADBEEX—RE
B ARIEES T AN IRRTREE
BEEHMELNESE

MRAEEEL M BIER - BRORD
F BB FE AN BR RN EL i P& 5 50 P 4))
IR RELEWA - EELMBER
RERNAAEBE T2REOURS
ERFRXZFATERER (a0 r] &
B METE - KSRAERZHEIEL A
it TAREBERERNELTE
77 FTHRCER O T R ) 2 B AR AR X SR HE AR
BB T & 77 P 8 YER Y fil 5 A K
(ange Rl SEHbfAEL) - BUEL BRI E
WS ENS - HESRRA
SEERANZEEENBRER - 10
RZEEWHEWEE - g
AR AN I AR X R 2
HERR o

MR RBEERENERSEERE
EROANEBRTEERCIELTB
FEREVWA - teoh - MR EE () FER
MFEE AR REIRIBERERAAEE
RHEER - AR RARELRE LS
ReBERARREM RN EN
REBRERERAKRNSE (A
RERANSERERAEHEEMGE
8 EEREMEE 100) FEREE -

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value of
financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm'’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not be available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 1(t)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(u) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual
basis.



1

FESRE(E)

(v) SNEB]RE

ARRREFBEEEBOHBRRNIY
BEERY LGB  MEPBEAME LXK
BB ARNINERERASARE - K&
BH2IIEELEE -

FANINEZ HIER F A INEE R ETT
BE - PHINERBUNEREEREBER
RBERRNIINEERRE - EXBRE
B R o

NESERAGHENINEIFERIEEERR
BREXHHENINEERBZE o HNER
BUIRAABEARNFEELEEE
BB ERFTERAEEE BHIMNEE R

= o

BRI EBHEAERRS A OINEE
EAREMERBE BB - BBRRRA
B RIS BRI SN R 5 Ao
o N 2 BAR M R ER D
EERER - W AT AREHFR
it -

ERRRETBERINEBAELNER
B BZEGABNRGFELZESHE
BB NBRELE

(v)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while that
for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is Renminbi.
The presentation currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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1 EESHBEE) 1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) fEE A (w)Borrowing costs

fEERARELHEIX -

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

(x) BEET (x) Related parties

(1) wWBLAT AL BIZ ALEZALTH (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

@)

AT 5 7 B [ ) e
() FEHRERZESAER
(i) HAEEEE

TEN XK

(i) EARERANEEEGQEREER
EHEAR -

WA THERGN - IERERR
NS bl ek

() “%ERBEAKEREBR—%H
G:1E=2 SN G= PN I E RS
JB R BRI A RERE)

@)

related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) " NEBRZ—EEMNBESAR (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
HEETE (NS EEES entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
EETKE R RNEZS A RIKE of a group of which the other entity is a member).
EE) -

(i) MREBER—F=AKN&21 (iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
&Ko party.

vy —"REBEF-HEBRNEGED (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
¥ ME—ERRE=-FEEN other entity is an associate of the third entity.
BN A o

RREEEERAF
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(x) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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2 Accounting judgement and estimates

Notes 11 and 24 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment and
financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether there is
any indication that property, plant and equipment may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the property, plant and equipment is estimated. Changes
in facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the
conclusion of whether an indication of impairment exists and
revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect
profit or loss in future years.

(b) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment other than cutlery and utensils
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are material
changes from previous estimates.

(c) Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 10(b), the investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional surveyors after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying on
the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.
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Accounting judgement and estimates (continued)

(d) Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") taxes. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for such taxes. There are
transactions during the ordinary course of business, for which
calculation of the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the
management'’s expectation of future taxable profit that will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

(e) Provision for long service payments

(f)

As explained in note 22(a), the Group makes provision for
long service payments in accordance with the requirement of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has based
the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and adopted
certain assumptions in assessing the provision for long service
payments. It is possible that these assumptions adopted by
the Group in assessing the provision for long service payments
may not be indicative of the future situation. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.

Provision for reinstatement costs

As explained in note 22(b), the Group makes provision for
reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the
expected costs to be incurred upon expiry of the respective
rental agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and might
differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease
in the provision would affect profit or loss in future years.
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3 WARSBEE

3 Revenue and segment reporting

(a) WA (a) Revenue
AEENFEEBRLEREEMDER The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast food
& o restaurants and property investments.

WABERE TEERMEKMNIEEER
FMESWA - WARDITAT -

Revenue represents the sales value of food and beverages sold
to customers and rental income. An analysis of revenue is as
follows:

BmkEmiEeE Sale of food and beverages 2,573,823 2,420,674
LE ek Property rental 7,081 7,299
2,580,904 2,427,973
RSB EEBNE —SHBEEDR Further details regarding the Group's principal activities are
N disclosed below:

(b) B EBERE
SEEEMES (NBEERLTE

(b) Segment reporting

2 2

The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
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Hong Kong restaurants and Mainland China restaurants,
which are organised by geographical location. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified the following two
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

— Hong Kong restaurants: this segment operates
restaurants in Hong
Kong.

— Mainland China restaurants: this segment operates

restaurants in Mainland
China.

Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
investment properties and include corporate expenses.
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results of
each reportable segment on the following bases:

DEEREDBHBARXZHENE Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
LD EAEENRAMI HKBRE segments with reference to revenue generated by those
LI EEMELMITES BEE segments and expenses incurred by those segments or
BmE - which otherwise arise from the depreciation or

amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

F¥ERBBAIDEEFNETE - ReeH Performance is measured based on segment profit before
BRERSEHBEBE X RDHERE S taxation. Items not specifically attributable to individual
B o segments are not allocated to the reportable segments.

BIEERR TR BN D BRI B 5§
BERON BB REBBEA(RRE
KB E A EERA) FMHEKRA (2
FRGEAAN - BIKRA- - He =0
MFTE)NDFER - D EEZBAR
HRELRXRBRET  2ERTM
BRETEER  WRIEENEHEER

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost, labour
cost, rent and rates and depreciation). The inter-segment
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms
and were priced with reference to prevailing market prices

17 o

FEERSETRERABY HERE
HERBEDBEENER -

and in the ordinary course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported to or used by

the Group’s most senior executive management.
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3 WARSEIBEE (E2)
(b) D EBFRE (&
() PEEEE)
B +ER_TE-ARFE=ZA=
+—BLEFERBETFAEERSET
BEREABRIESEERMTEDH
FRNAEERESBHERDT -

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Segment results (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended
31 March 2017 and 2016 is set out below.

KENBZEF  Revenue from external

2,284,510 108,978 136,164 7,081 7299 2,580,904 2,427,973

- - - 4,841 5,000 4,841 5,000

AU A customers 2,464,845
KEEMDE  Inter-segment revenue
ol 9N -
HEDHMMA  Reportable segment
revenue 2,464,845

2,284,510 108,978 136,164 11,922 12,299 2,585,745 2,432,973

REAPEF  Reportable segment

profit 236,829 229,600 3,145 2,070 11,841 10,481 251,815 242,151
HMEKBA Interest income 7,597 9,184 44 47 - - 7,641 9,231
FITEFFIE  Interest expense on
£ bank loans 106 237 - - - - 106 237
EMHH Depreciation and
amortisation 82,541 73,783 3,926 4,207 880 879 87,347 78,869
W BN Impairment losses on
RENRE property, plant and
BB equipment 4,892 7,856 - 1,060 - - 4,892 8,916

90 RREEBHRAF]
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(b) 2 &BIRE (&)
(i) #|&DIHEF G R

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

= F Profit

BRI BT ¥R 5 0 B00a A

Reportable segment profit before taxation 251,815 242,151

HEFEFENIEREEE  Net gain on disposal of non-current assets held

U 25 5 %E for sale - 11,710
LAARBEE ABZEBEM  Change in fair value of other financial liabilities

CRIBEMAREEED at fair value through profit or loss 12 66
BEMEMELRS (EE) Valuation gain/(loss) on investment properties 2,510 (2,110)
Y - AR ARER Impairment losses on property, plant and

REEE equipment (4,892) (8,916)
Fr B ATAR A Y A Consolidated profit before taxation 249,445 242,901

(iii) EE R

TRIEBBO)AEEREINEEP
HRA - AR (i AR EBEIRE Y% -
Hip Y%k  #WEEFRE  UKERE
HIFERAMEE L RS RHE (45
EIFRRBEE]) MAELER - TP
AT R RRERHREHERN
WEED MBEBRIEEHRBDEES
REPIE - WERMRE AR
ERZEENERMEwSED : 08
RIEEFRBEEETEE - B
AR E DR E M & EHE 2

I\ o

7]

(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment, interests
in leasehold land held for own use under operating lease,
and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets in the case of property, plant and equipment, and
the location of the operation to which they are allocated
in the case of goodwill.
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3 WARSEEE () 3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) D EBFRE (& (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(iii) WEER (&) (iii) Geographic information (continued)

e Hong Kong
() (place of domicile) 2,467,973 2,287,620 432,793 361,259
B P9 it Mainland China 112,931 140,353 69,507 63,983
2,580,904 2,427,973 502,300 425,242
4 HEAREIEEH 4 Other revenue and net losses

HApl A Other revenue
FEUA Interest income 7,641 9,231
HitngEF5E Other net losses
BREMHE - HBMHME Net loss on disposal of property, plant and

oyEisbe sl equipment (6,547) (5,781)
PE SRS Net foreign exchange loss (9,242) (8,067)
BEKREBEES Electric and gas range incentives 3,251 2,974
H S HRA RS s A Profit on sale of redemption gifts 726 997
Hh Others 2,603 1,460

(9,209) (8,417)
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5 FRWRWEF 5 Profit before taxation
BREADSEFME B (GTA) ¢ Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) AERAE (a) Finance costs
UARBEFABZHNEMN Change in fair value of other financial
TREENAN BEEZD liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (12) (66)
RITERFEERA Interest expense on bank loans 106 237
924 171
(b) ETRAE (b) Staff costs
R ERFRRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 36,114 31,937
LA A E R LA D B AR Equity-settled share-based payment
SZ0] expenses 1,825 2,255
e TARHMERN Salaries, wages and other benefits 763,603 702,096
801,542 736,288
() HfwEH (c) Otheritems
FEKA () Cost of inventories (note) 610,573 599,782
e Depreciation 87,135 78,657
DR EREaRm Amortisation of interests in leasehold
THE £ b i o B B land held for own use under operating
leases 212 212
ZE AN & Auditor’s remuneration
- ZERE - Audit services 3,739 3,645
- HBRE - Tax services 172 169
- EiR - Other services 178 474
MENKLHEEER Operating lease charges on properties
- ®EHEENKE —  Minimum lease payments 387,939 344,219
- HAEMEE - Contingent rentals 13,062 16,530
ilgiskq Rental receivable
- REAMEREEZT - Investment properties, less direct
34,000 7T (ZE—7R4EF ¢ outgoings of $34,000 (2016:
225,0007T) $225,000) (3,919) (3,964)
- HiggoBEHEE - Other operating sub-leases (3,128) (3,110)
HgE#HINZ A KFEMA Cost of subsequent replacement of
=g=2! cutlery and utensils 10,424 11,587
M - FERARERMAA Note: The cost of inventories represents food costs.
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6 RERBXRMTHMER 6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
() GEBBRMRNRIAS ! (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents:

AHEBIE —ERAEHR Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REEEME Provision for the year 39,012 39,581
AL E A F BT Over-provision in respect of prior years (1,092) (49)
37,920 39,532
IEFERIE (FFEE21(b)) Deferred tax (note 21(b))
TREEMNELNED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 6,244 2,591
44,164 42,123
—E L FENEBNEHEGRRAF The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is calculated
SR AT FERE U FI LA 16.5% (ZF — X at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
F:16.5%) MR EGTE - for the year.
ZTE—tNZE-RFE AKEEAF No provision has been made for the PRC corporate income tax
W E B SIS IS EE - Bt BA R for 2017 and 2016 as the Group’s Mainland China operations
Zm EEE R B S TR - recorded a loss for tax purpose for both years.

(b) HIELXHAEHENZBEABEFE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
AR ¢ accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

R B A V4 ) Profit before taxation 249,445 242,901
298 16.5% (—Z—7%F : 16.5%) Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at

MR ENZETBFER 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 41,158 40,079
ER B EEREENHBE AR Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary

RATRABENZE operating in another tax jurisdiction 651 (1,296)
AR S B R R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4,933 4,318
BAHBARNTIESZ Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,602) (2,335)
AR ME RS AMKFEEIE  Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised

MTIAZE 1,082 1,372
RIERNEME R ZRNTHEIBEE  Tax effect of other temporary differences not

recognised 34 34

LATE S E 2R B T Over-provision in respect of prior years (1,092) (49)
EREBIES H Actual tax expense 44,164 42,123
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7 EEMe 7 Directors’ emoluments
RAE BB CR AHER ) 5 383(1)IEFC A A Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
(BEBEESMNZER) RO E 2505 3HR the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
EEMenT Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

HITES Executive Directors

BHBTE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 5,640 5,301 = 18 11,129
BRAERK ST E Mr Chan Chee Shing 150 2,122 3,976 238 18 6,504
B/ NE Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 1,764 1,325 123 18 3,380
FHTES Non-executive Director

RERLE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - = = = 180

BUFHTES Independent Non-
executive Directors

BREESFEAE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - = = - 190
ZIE L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 = - - - 170
ERZELE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 - = = - 170
FEELE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - _ 240

1,420 9,526 10,602 361 54 21,963

95



96

B RS ER AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRILAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 EEM&(E

7 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

HITEE Executive Directors
ERGTE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 5,280 5,233 - 18 10,701
BRER L4 Mr Chan Chee Shing 150 2,005 3,925 255 18 6,353
Eath/INB Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 1,671 1,308 146 18 3,293
FHTES Non-executive Director
REBEE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - - - 180
BIYFHTES Independent Non-
executive Directors
BRECEF A Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
IS L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - - - 170
BRREE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 - - - - 170
FRERE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - _ _ 240
1,420 8,956 10,466 401 54 21,297
MieE : AR R ER A I RIEREAR A AAE Note: Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options
RIEAEIRTESHERENGTEE & granted to the Directors under the Company's share option scheme.
A B [ A8 60 (B (B 2 4R BR B 5 1) (i) T &k 21 AR The value of these share options is measured according to the Group's
SEARG RERNZ MR N THE accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in
FE - WIRIEZBARE S8 HNERE note 1(r)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to
P ATHER IR FTIR T i es TEREATF reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity
ERFOEESEEL MR instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.
ERELENMNENFE  BEMETE Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
RIENEERRNEBE  ARNEFERE number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Eh [RS8 | —ERAIPf=E20/ - Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note 20.
RREEEERAF
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8 mEMaAL 8 Individuals with highest emoluments
TR MesEaEMALTHR =M (ZF— Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
NEFE: =) AEE BENMSFEE individuals (2016: three individuals) are Directors whose
RHIEE7 - EER (2T —XF : ML) emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
ATHIBN S @zEmT - emoluments in respect of the other two individuals (2016:

two individuals) are as follows:

e MEHMEE Salaries and other emoluments 3,620 3,320
AR (D B ERE R S Share-based payments 92 138
RRET IR Retirement scheme contributions 36 36
3,748 3,494
M (ZZ—7"F : ML) eEmm ALTH The emoluments of the two individuals (2016: two individuals)
e A TEHER : with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

1,500,001 ¢ % 2,000,000 7T $1,500,001-$2,000,000 1 2
2,000,001 7% 2,500,000 7T $2,000,001-$2,500,000 1 -
2 2
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9 HEREF

(a) BREAXRZER
FREABAREBAFEENAQRLE
5 A2 25 % BR B 4 048 1) 205,281,000 7T (=&
— 755 1 200,778,0007T) © A KRB EITE
B INAE 19 80127,162,000 8 (= ZF—
JNEE 1 126,574,0000%) st E AT ¢

R IEFHE

9 Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $205,281,000 (2016: $200,778,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 127,162,000
shares (2016: 126,574,000 shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

REOA—RANERHTEER Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 126,745 126,341
IT{E IR N2 Effect of share options exercised 488 563
Bl fE AR K o 2 Effect of shares repurchased (71) (330)
REZA=+—H8E @R Weighted average number of ordinary shares

n#EFEIE at 31 March 127,162 126,574

(b) BlREERF
EREERNSEBAR AL AR ERS
fi% B8 i 1 3% F1) 205,281,000 7T ( =& — 7%
£ :200,778,0007T) * LA K 3t i A &9 50
7 ¥ 15 %0129,017,000f% ( = F — /)N 4
127,454,0000%) st &0 :

B T8 ()

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $205,281,000 (2016: $200,778,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 129,017,000
shares (2016: 127,454,000 shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

R E S REAR RN N LB
IntEF I 8

WARBIRIEAR R RO RE A ERT 2
TEHERBTERRNTE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

used in calculating basic earnings per share 127,162 126,574
Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares

under the Company’s share option scheme

for nil consideration 1,855 880

R E S REE RN M EER

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

98 used in calculating diluted earnings per
share 129,017 127,454
RIEEBER LD H

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



1MVREMR - KRttt - B#BEWE

fEREE L
(a)

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land

(a)

RAHEE : Cost or valuation:
RZT—HF At 1 April 2015

mA—H 98,920 267,259 522,154 888,333 40,780 8,098 937,211
T 5 R Exchange adjustments (336) (1,409)  (1,794)  (3,539) - - (3,539)
wE Additions - 57,917 79,577 137,494 - - 137,494
HeE Disposals - (28,624)  (31,419)  (60,043) - - (60,043)
EHEE Loss on revaluation

(FFE10(b)) (Note 10(b)) - - - - @210 - @10
RZB—REF At 31 March 2016

=A=+—H 98,584 295,143 568,518 962,245 38,670 8,098 1,009,013
Rk Representing:
AR Cost 98,584 295,143 568,518 962,245 - 8,098 970,343
fHE— —Z—"%F Valuation — 2016 - - - - 38,670 - 38,670

98,584 295,143 568,518 962,245 38,670 8,098 1,009,013

RHE - B8R Accumulated depreciation,

WAE - amortisation and

impairment:

RZT—hEF At 1 April 2015

WA—H 45,386 195,168 312,376 552,930 - 1,270 554,200
[E 7 A% Exchange adjustments (312) (1,298) (1,359) (2,969) - - (2,969)
FEHE Charge for the year 2,578 33,071 43,008 78,657 - 212 78,869
REEE Impairment losses

(PR 5E 10(d)) (Note 10(d)) - 3,021 5,895 8,916 - - 8,916
HEREE Written back on disposal - (28,522)  (25,722)  (54,244) - - (54,244)
RZT—RF At 31 March 2016

=A=+—H 47,652 201,440 334,198 583,290 - 1,482 584,772
BREFE Net book value:
RZE—REF At 31 March 2016

=B=+—H 50,932 93,703 234,320 378,955 38,670 6,616 424,241
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108 EWE - HthrE BB 10 Investment properties, other property, plant and
fREE LM (E equipment and leasehold land (continued)

(a) (%) (a) (continued)

A GE : Cost or valuation:
RZT—REF At 1 April 2016

MA—H 98,584 295,143 568,518 962,245 38,670 8,098 1,009,013
[E 5 Exchange adjustments (408) (1,530) (1,868) (3,806) - - (3,806)
e Additions 281 72,299 101,913 174,493 - - 174,493
HeE Disposals - (36,409) (46,685) (83,094) - - (83,094)
EhRBH% Gain on revaluation

(Fft3E10(b)) (Note 10(b)) = = = - 2,510 - 2,510
RZT—+F At 31 March 2017

=A=+—H 98,457 329,503 621,878 1,049,838 41,180 8,098 1,099,116
Rk Representing:
BRAR Cost 98,457 329,503 621,878 1,049,838 - 8,098 1,057,936
i — ZZF—+ 4% Valuation — 2017 - - - - 41,180 - 41,180

98,457 329,503 621,878 1,049,838 41,180 8,098 1,099,116

ZHITE BHK  Accumulated depreciation,

HE amortisation and

impairment:

RZT—REF At 1 April 2016

mA—H 47,652 201,440 334,198 583,290 - 1,482 584,772
I 51 S EE Exchange adjustments (397) (1,242) (1,292)  (2,931) - - (2931)
FERE Charge for the year 2,408 36,304 48,423 87,135 - 212 87,347
REEE Impairment losses

(FftzE10(d)) (Note 10(d)) - 1,916 2,976 4,892 - - 4,892
HE ] Written back on disposal - (36,156) (40,107) (76,263) - - (76,263)
RZT—+F At 31 March 2017

=A=+—H 49,663 202,262 344,198 596,123 - 1,694 597,817
BRERE ! Net book value:
RZE—tF At 31 March 2017

—A=t+—H 48,794 127,241 277,680 453,715 41,180 6,404 501,299

1 OO RREEBHRAF]
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1MVREMER - KRtttk - B#BEWE

fRREAE LM (&)
(a) (%)

REEMERANKGEENDNLT

(a) (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the
Group is as follows:

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land (continued)

HE LTI EY (RAA) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
EEBNPHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 71,090 71,090
ERBEIIFEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,367 27,494
98,457 98,584

REWE (REH) Investment properties, at valuation
EEBRIINPEHES Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 41,180 38,670
UREHEREERAN Interests in leasehold land held for own

HE L ER (RRA) use under operating leases, at cost
EEBNPHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,098 8,098

(b) MEMNRAEETE

0}

DMREBEEER
AEERRERNRBREEELESAER
EMENRDABE RRFEEEE
AEREHENIERDEE - %%
EMEBEDHEACEARBRE L)
R1BR—T QA EETEIFARERW
ZEAREBEER  AREL2EBIAT
BEDEMRANEABNATEBRRE
EMERN  tMEBEEAABEFE
BEFMERBHNELR

- B ELRMBE: RAEREER
W AEBIHEREEXBER
ERMERRMIZNREHER
B)RAEAAEE-

(b) Fair value measurement of properties
(i) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement of the Group's investment
properties at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis and the Group’s non-current assets held
for sale on a non-recurring basis are categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.
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1MVREMER - Ktttk - B#BEWE
iR (=
(b) MHEN R REEE ()
() 2REEERE)
- F_EAMRBE:ERE_ELH
ANME(BIREE-BRANABER
BAE)  YREERTAERE
AERAERAEBE - TABER
B AERERRT S IR A
B

- F-ERMEE: RAEATAEH
RN NERFEAAEE-

MAEREMEER _ZE—LFN_
T-RE=ZA=+—BETER &
mITIERBIB B EBAT — P
ZEREMERRARET  ZAER
TR THERABXER  HFE
MR BV XN B FER A AR
BHRR - AEEEIREC ERIE6
A RS MARETHENRRNE
8o

R-TE—+FEM-_T—RF=ZA=+
— B AEEMREKREMESL Ll
ME=AREBEHEHRTE -

ok

(i) F=FRAALEBEFEBNER

FR B A3
—EEME
Mainland China
— Commercial properties

NRPEAMNRENEN D AE
B REAERLEEETE  EHE
SEALMENTE  WIRBERS
MBTEEMEEELAZE - REY
XFARRHE  eREBRENAR

EBEAEHE-

RREEBHRAF]
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BRLEOA

Direct comparison
approach

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and

equipment and leasehold land (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2017 and 2016 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who has staff with recognised
professional qualifications and relevant experience in the
location and category of investment properties being
revalued. The Group’s management has discussion with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at the end of the
reporting period.

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, all of the Group's
investment properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as described above.

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

BEYHNEE

BTSSR 63 (8, (4T 3%)

Premium/(discount) on
quality of the
buildings

(9)% Z 10%
(ZEB—RF:(10% E3%)
(9)% to 10%

(2016: (10)% to 3%)

The fair values of investment properties located in
Mainland China are determined by using direct
comparison approach with reference to the market price
of comparable properties and adjusted for building quality
and timing of the reference transactions. Higher premium
for investment properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.



1MVREMER - KRtttk - B#BEWE

fiRER LM (&)

(b) MEN A ABEE (F)

(i) F=ERAABETENER (B)

BRI R B A A R A ERE R
mE BT -

10 Investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and leasehold land (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The movement of these investment properties in Mainland
China during the year is as follows:

RZZE—RFMA—A At 1 April 2015 40,780
(HEEE Valuation loss (2,110)
RZE—R"F=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2016 38,670
RZT—R"FMNA—A At 1 April 2016 38,670
HEARK Valuation gain 2,510
R-ZE—+tF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2017 41,180

() HBEBERM - RE - 2R]% - A

B BREASRLRDRBENTIXEA KSR
[ o

(d)EXFER AEEERERT B

ERBERERE WEETZDEDF
WERMER R0 Al B B0 - RIRGEE - F
Mz - RN BB RE 2B
{64,892,0007C (= F — 7N 4 : 8,916,000
TT) °

BE_ZT—+tF=A=+—H  FAER
EYE - EESFIRER AT kB SEEm T2
B(ZZE—RF: - REABEAETE MR
ERE S 5/ AT Y [E 4 %8 5 5l A 592,000
JLHN1,162,0007T © Britb 2 51 - 2 T E R
BEYE  EEBMBENATNE S BB
&) -

A E AN G RERYE  EEEME
HENFEREE FRMREISH(ZFT—
JNEE 15%) ETE o

(e) R=F—tF=A=+—8" kh4%

B oK B R R FTERITIEROYERE
%8 A1,422,0000( = & — X F ¢
1,522,0007T) °

(c) Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial purchases
of cutlery and utensils.

(d) During the year, the Group’s management identified a branch
which continued to under-perform and estimated the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment of
this branch. Based on the estimate, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment was written down by
$4,892,000 (2016: $8,916,000) during the year.

As at 31 March 2017, the recoverable amount of the
property, plant and equipment impaired during the year was
minimal (2016: the recoverable amounts of the two impaired
branches amounted to $592,000 and $1,162,000 were
determined based on the value in use. Apart from the above,
the recoverable amounts of the remaining impaired property,
plant and equipment were minimal).

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the
property, plant and equipment’s value in use, determined
using a discount rate of 15% (2016: 15%).

(e) At 31 March 2017, the net book value of properties pledged
as security for banking guarantees granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Group amounted to $1,422,000 (2016:
$1,522,000).
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108 EWE - Hthps BBME® 10 Investment properties, other property, plant and

HRESLTH (&) equipment and leasehold land (continued)

(f) REBAKLEERTEEEYE -z () The Group leases out investment properties under operating
ENFEB—FE+F - FEAKLEHEY leases. The leases initially run for one to ten years. None of
TEERERE - NEBIRE TR the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group's total
KEHETAREBRNSERENZELR future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
ST operating leases are receivable as follows:

—FR Within 1 year 5,642 6,955

—FERERFRA After 1 year but within 5 years 17,310 17,826

RF% After 5 years 8,892 13,285

31,844 38,066
1M1 &8 11 Goodwiill

RA(RIOA—BR=ZA=+—H) Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001
BEBENReELE THRENR Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill
AEERKEMBMEB IO REET Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units
AHRINReELE T ((ReEESET]) ("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and
L business segment as follows:

EBREB—PEAN Restaurant operation — Mainland China 1,001 1,001
ReENETNAKESESRBEERAE The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on
Bt - FTEFERREEBEEZAENT value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
FHMBEENR RS c BBRAFH projections based on financial budgets approved by
I A93R & 7t = 1 T L A iy 5 1) SR fEHE R o management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
BERENABAZREELBITAEEE the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates
BHRATHERE - stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term

average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates.

1 04 RREEBHRAF]
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11 &8 (&) 1
BERENESELE THRERR
(&)

AAREEREENERERE

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (continued)

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

E[F Gross margin
1 5 & Growth rate
Prif = Discount rate

EEERBEGNEATSERBEERE
EFE - AERARITR XA 2 RRAERME
SELETHERBROBATITEE -

12 Hth&mEE 12

14% 14%
3% 3%
15% 15%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectation for market
development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.

Other financial assets

ERBEMEE Non-current financial assets
RAZIHEBHES Held-to-maturity debt security
- LTHEERE — Unlisted but quoted 7,885 8,405
REBLRMEE Current financial assets
HNEE R ER R IR Foreign currency medium-term note
-3 LEMEB®RE — Unlisted but quoted 1,132 -

9,017 8,405

FEBESBAPEAN — RS BIEE
BT UMARBEE  BRFEHNE36%
B FHH-_FT—=F+—A+=HZE=
Z—N\Ft+—A+=H-

O B A ZE I R P AR FL L — R & Rl
BEIT UARBEE  EFFE36%
e RNBMEEE—_E—+tEXA=T
E| o

The debt security was issued by a financial institution in
Mainland China, denominated in Renminbi, bears interest at a
rate of 3.6% per annum and has a term for the period from
13 November 2013 to 13 November 2018.

The medium-term note was issued by a financial institution in
Abu Dhabi, denominated in Renminbi, bears interest at a rate
of 3.6% per annum with the maturity up to 30 June 2017.
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13 HEFENIERDEE 13 Non-current assets held for sale
HHE_E—RF=A=1+—HILFE - During the year ended 31 March 2015, a sale and purchase
AEBHE=FFIVTEEmZ  HEE agreement was entered into with a third party to dispose of
THE L MZEYARKEE - 715 certain properties with net proceeds of $30,993,000. The
FRIEF 5 4 30,993,0007T ° B HER transaction was completed on 30 April 2015 and a net gain
—E-RAFMA=tTHEER  WEEHE= on disposal of $11,710,000 was recognised during the year
E-RFE=ZA=T—HIEFEERFR ended 31 March 2016. The balance of land and buildings
%= 38 11,710,000 7T © B2 E W) SRR Y revaluation reserve related to the disposed properties
T AR Y E L #E 241,000 TE A amounting to $241,000 had transferred to retained profits
RE R A © thereupon.

14 &8 14 Inventories

(a) HREMBRRRMTINFEESRE ! (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of

financial position comprise:

B RE Food and beverages 38,367 33,652
SHFEM - BEME Consumables, packaging materials
R H AthH1E and other sundry items 3,305 3,259
41,672 36,911
(b) BRAZIHNTFEHESINAOT - (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense is as follows:

DEFENERSE Carrying amount of inventories sold 610,310 599,274
FEHR Write down of inventories 263 508
610,573 599,782

1 06 RREEBHRAF]
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



15 PR M5t BE 3% F0 3 fib PR T %

15 Trade and other receivables

P LT B R EL A R UK R Trade and other debtors 13,193 9,634
ENESMARSEELS Rental and utility deposits paid 37,033 40,092
FEfRTR Prepayments 28,956 20,980

79,182 70,706

B T /& 885,256,000t ( =& — X F:
3,867,0007T) AR EERZREI  AEE
FB YRR ~ 1RE MIBR FRIEFT AT R —
FARERER B -

(a) BRER D #r
AR 5 HA SR 9 8 WK BR SRR LAt JlE e sk 2
REBER (CMBRREER)  RRER
BT ERRE AT

All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart
from certain utility deposits totalling $5,256,000 (2016:
$3,867,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as
an expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors (net
of allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice date,
with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the
reporting period:

—Z=+H 1 to 30 days 2,456 2,452
=f+—&Ah+H 31 to 90 days 215 466
nt+—Z=—8NA+H 91 to 180 days 101 -

2,772 2,918

AEHEETETHHEXSEZURS

BE  ARENGETEREGHEIBER

NF=tHELTHHENEESR-

The Group's sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 75 days to certain
customers to which the Group provides catering services.
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15 BRI EMEKRRR (2) 15 Trade and other receivables (continued)
(b) 3ERME Y FEWLER X (b) Trade debtors that are not impaired
JEME RSk 4R A AR AR E HY JE U BR 30 BR 55 The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
DT individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

FE HARE Neither past due nor impaired 2,332 2,722
‘AN —1E A Less than 1 month past due 222 188
mE—ZE=={AA 1 to 3 months past due 205 8
#ARPY = 75 {E A 4 to 6 months past due 13 _
440 196
2,772 2,918
F 6 B Sl (B B FE U AR SRS TR HR R B 4 Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate
REFHEFREEER to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

B8 BB JE R (B 8 FE U AR SR T = 2R B AR Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to a
SEEREEBERN—RB LTS - & number of independent customers that have a good track
BERAL REBEUFLR AN EEEER record with the Group. Based on past experience,
WAEBIE - MBS RIS AT 28U management believes that no impairment allowance is
Bl - FrABZER LRI EEE - A&E necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
W E AR M ERMD - significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

16 MITERARL 16 Bank deposits and cash

RITIFH Deposits with banks 307,573 327,728
RITEFEZRNERE Cash at bank and in hand 116,196 177,733

GAEBEESRERMTHRSHN Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
NEZEED cash flow statement 423,769 505,461
B=E A% TEHRITER Bank deposits over three months 79,210 43,146
502,979 548,607

1 08 RREEBHRAF]
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17 FEf AR R F0HE fth B T 5%

17 Trade and other payables

FETBR R ERT B A Creditors and accrued expenses 364,311 339,897
FE U 3k 18 AR RE UG A Receipts in advance and deferred income 28,251 23,906

ST & B T B (B 24(a)il) Derivative financial instruments (notes 24(a)(iii)
K 24(a)v)) and 24(a)(v)) = 12
Bl EEe Rental deposits received 952 45
393,514 363,860

BRTETHEKRREAMELRAS S
12,350,0007C ( = & — /X 4 : 8,457,000
TT) S » B L At AT AR SR L At B A 3K
FHKBR —FREBRERBIA - RA

R—FAEE -

K& R ENRRME RS TP E
REMER  EREZAHFAENRED

MR

as income or are repayable within one year.

All of the other trade and other payables, apart from certain
receipts in advance and deferred income totalling $12,350,000
(2016: $8,457,000), are expected to be settled or recognised

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of
the end of the reporting period:

—Z&==+H 1 to 30 days 100,197 99,335
=+—Z=hn+H 31 to 90 days 873 2,717
N+—=—8aN\+H 91 to 180 days 880 2,740
—BN\T—ZEZ=F,~THH 181 to 365 days 75 71
—F LA E Over one year 316 668

102,341 105,531
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18 SRITER
R_E—+tFR T RF=ZA=+—
B EKIRRITERERET

18

Bank loans

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the unsecured bank loans were
repayable as follows:

—EFREHEENEHERA

Current portion of term loans due for

BIEAER 5 repayment within one year 1,720 3,053
— R EEENTHER Term loans due for repayment after one year:

- —FEERERN — After 1 year but within 2 years 1,720 1,720

-MEEERFERA — After 2 years but within 5 years 143 1,863

1,863 3,583

RITE KB Total bank loans 3,583 6,636

AEENPORTERAGAKEETE
FAR AR REE RV RUR - TIHIFE -
HEROE RN ES BB A ERR
PErh - AKBERZY CEHANBE
BRRERER - ASEETHERAR
BT HERL

AEBEEEREBE SRR BEHNME
24@a)ii) c RZF—+tF=A=+—H " #
EERABBEDAFEERENEYN(=ZZ
— N ) o

=B ]
AEBBERESCGRFHIE LB EEG)D
KT @ BREBBUERBIKG)RES
EAMNES SRR EATESFE (58
BerrEll) - aEer a2 —ERERK
RIRETE  ABYAMZTAETIE - IRIE8
Besrd  EEMEES S ARRE SR
ABHS% MRS EERER: B
A®IHEEA B ER A&30,000T (ZF—X
4 :30,0007T) - A SEAFHARES
FTEIF -

19

AEBEFBAIMEERNEEREES
B EER S BE 1B E 80 FRE HFURIK
AHEIRREE -
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Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group’s statement of
financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to
breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants.

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in note 24(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2017, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2016: None).

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $30,000 (2016: $30,000). Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.
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R-F——FNAtHE ARRKL-F
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20 Equity-settled share-based transactions

On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated the 2002
Option Scheme (the “2002 Option Scheme"”) and adopted the
2011 Option Scheme (the “2011 Option Scheme”) on the
same date. As a result of the termination, no further options
may be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme but the
options that have been granted and remained outstanding as
of that date under such scheme remain effective. There is no
outstanding options under such scheme as at 31 March 2017.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any employee, Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) or officer of any member of the Group or any related
trust or company to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the share option scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.
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0LIBSREHLUERGESERMET 20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

5 (%)

(@) L TEEAEEEFEREWNKZFM () The terms and conditions of the grants that
G FREEREYEBELR I existed during the year are as follows, whereby
hiEE all options are settled by physical delivery of

shares:

RTEZNEAE

Options granted to Directors:

-—ZT-RFWA-+H 1,100,000 FAIR-ZT-—RFEA-—HRE-_T-_F 7.04F
=A=+—RHERND Z#ITE

—20 April 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during 7.0 years

the period from 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022

X T E 8 eI ARHE -

Options granted to employees:

-—T——%RANA 160,000 ARZZE——FHRANBEZZT—HF 8.0%F
A ANBEEAS AHLITE

-9 May 2011 Exercisable in five tranches during 8.0 years
the period from 9 May 2012 to
8 May 2019

-ZZE-RFWA=+H 4,870,000 AR-T-REHA-—HE-T-_— 7.0%
ZA=+—BEENS LT

—20 April 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during 7.0 years

the period from 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022

-—Z—A%+A=AH 60,000 AR-T—AFTA-—BE-T_— 7.0%
NWA=+THBEERD ALTE
— 2 October 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during 7.0 years

the period from 1 October 2016 to
30 September 2022
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0LIBESREHLUERGESEBRMET 20 Equity-settled share-based transactions (continued)

B (&)
(b) BEREENHBEMMETLYTEEM (b) The number and weighted average exercise
T prices of share options are as follows:

FYIRITE Outstanding at the beginning
of the year $20.46T 6,190,000 $7.637C 1,262,000
FNDETF Granted during the year - - $20.717¢ 6,190,000
FRBITE Exercised during the year $18.31 7T (658,000) $7.157T  (1,102,000)
FRB KK Lapsed during the year $20.70 T (204,000) $20.707T (160,000)
FRRITHE Outstanding at the end
of the year $20.72 5,328,000 $20.467T 6,190,000
FERAIITE Exercisable at the end of the year $20.79 7T 99,000 - -
REFRNDATEBRENRITE B &N The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
FHRRE 3314 (ZF —77F : 23.11 shares options exercised during the year was $33.14 (2016:
JL) ° $23.11).
R_Z—tF=A=+—BRTEERE The options outstanding at 31 March 2017 had a weighted
R INHEF I ITEEB B20.72 0 (ZF— R average exercise price of $20.72 (2016: $20.46) and a
fF :20.467T) MmN TR E AR weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.01 years (2016:
B501F (ZF—/RF :593F) - 5.93 years).
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21 FEMEBERAEATHREIR 21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position

(a) trE AR RTRVAERIIES ! (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

KEZBHEFNEGHAERS Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year 39,012 39,581
B E RGN Provisional Profits Tax paid (29,642) (24,406)
9,370 15,175
NEFENSTRERBE R Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to
prior years - 927
9,370 16,102
K& : Representing:
FE R HARR T8 Current tax payable 9,370 16,102

1 14 KRIFEEEERAA
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1M ERAEMTHOMRBM 21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of

(#& financial position (continued)

(b) ERFDELEHIEEENEE : (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
DEGAMBRNRERNELEHE (& The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
E)/BENERBOUNERBRE_F— in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
FN-_TE—RF=ZA=1+—"BILFEEZH movements during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016
A are as follows:

KETHEENELSBIE :  Deferred tax arising from:

R-ZZE—RAFWMNA—AH At 1 April 2015 6,286 10,638 (427) 16,497
rwHmABEERP GTA)/ (Credited)/charged to the
H3z (Mi7E6(a)) consolidated statement of
profit or loss (note 6(a)) (970) 3,440 121 2,591
R-ZE—RF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2016 5,316 14,078 (306) 19,088
RZE—R"FWOA—AH At 1 April 2016 5,316 14,078 (306) 19,088
AFABEHEERBIX Charged to the consolidated
(Mf7x6(a)) statement of profit or loss
(note 6(a)) 811 5,272 161 6,244
R-Z—+HF=A=+—H At31March 2017 6,127 19,350 (145) 25,332

iR e BB R ER Net deferred tax assets recognised in the

IR B & R E consolidated statement of financial position (145) (306)

LR SRR R IERAY Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
RERIEE EFE consolidated statement of financial position 25,477 19,394
25,332 19,088
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21 B SHMERREMRTHHRAM 21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of

(4 financial position (continued)
() RIEFWELERIEEE : (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

AREE N R Bt 2RI IEE5 18 69,613,000 7T The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
(=ZF—XF : 63,057,00070) REFH B of the cumulative tax losses of $69,613,000 (2016:
N A B B] $0 R R = R 3,766,000 (= $63,057,000) and deductible temporary differences of
T — N4 ¢ 3,558,000 ) MR A AR LT $3,766,000 (2016: $3,558,000) of certain subsidiaries as
HMEEE AAAEEERERE  H2 management of the Group considers that it is not probable as
“T—tF=A=t—H ' EHELTK at 31 March 2017 that future taxable profits against which
AR TN E ERES T HN A G- the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
EIER KRR FERD S A o B2 T B A B jurisdictions. Other than tax losses of subsidiaries in Mainland
N a) R T E518 32,463,000 T ( —F — 7~ China of $32,463,000 (2016: $25,906,000) which have an
1 25,906,0007T) iR IE R BHEER A expiry period of 5 years under existing PRC tax legislation,
FI1BERAN - BIEIRITRE - EEFIEE these tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

BTRERRES -

22 ¥(§ 22 Provisions

REIRFE S ERE Provision for long service payments 12,023 17,200
THESFTHEE AN ERE Provision for reinstatement costs for rented
premises 43,815 40,310
55,838 57,510
B BREERSAEINKIE Less: Amount included under
“current liabilities” (12,642) (13,320)
43,196 44,190
(a) REARRIE &2 (a) Provision for long service payments

R A—H At 1 April 17,200 10,700

2 (EE) FHERERE Provision (reversed)/made (3.758) 7,699

CERHEE Provision utilised (1.419) (1,199)

R=ZA=+—H At 31 March 12,023 17,200
KRIFEEEERAA

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



22 #f| (&)

(a) REIFRIE & %E14E (&)
BEEBUREIEG)  AEBERNETIE
RTEAEBRE R ERFENESBRR
BRREL—S2%E - ENSBEETX
SEEMNSETCHREEMT - TERE
IR AN MR R 5T B R & o 5 A A it
HmiER o AEEWE A FRERETEMN
BRETAEE o

(b) HES SRR AR

22 Provisions (continued)
(a) Provision for long service payments (continued)

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued
under the Group'’s retirement schemes that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set
aside any assets to fund the above.

(b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented
premises

RIEA—H At 1 April 40,310 37,728
BT RRIEEINERE Additional provision made 5,719 4,463
DB Provision utilised (2,214) (1,881)
R=ZA=+—H At 31 March 43,815 40,310

RIBEEXETIOHERZOGER - A%
78 7 A8 B 1 B 175 5 Je i B IR BR IS 1 R
S5 BRAKANH NS BAE - Fit -
AEBE DB ELNBERARKE
fEEHED T &M -

23 BEMGEMR

(a) A EEAMER NS EER NSt
MEERNEE RIRBSENGS
ERBHE -

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
premises at the Group's cost upon expiry of the relevant rental
agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best estimate
of the expected reinstatement costs to be incurred.

23 Capital and reserves

(a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 63.
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23 BEMEER (&)
(b) RE (b) Dividends

(i) BREAEEERNAATEEZRRNR (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
B Company attributable to the year

23 Capital and reserves (continued)

EEIRE RS &R

Interim dividend declared and paid of 34.0

34.01lL (ZZE—7<4F : 31.01L) cents (2016: 31.0 cents) per share 43,317 39,312
BEIR LI ATRRI ERRR S Special interim dividend declared and paid
BIRZEW (ZZF—73F 1 9.01)  of Nil cent (2016: 9.0 cents) per share - 11,413

R S RBEZE D IRARS
% B & /% 58.01
(ZZ—7<%F : 55.01l)

RREPEREBEZD K
5 Bl R EARR B &A% 50.011L
(ZZE—RF - 45.01)

Final dividend proposed after the end of the

reporting period of 58.0 cents

(2016: 55.0 cents) per share 73,755 69,710
Special final dividend proposed after the

end of the reporting period of 50.0 cents

(2016: 45.0 cents) per share 63,582 57,035

180,654 177,470

K& R ERERE D KR M
BIR AR S 19 R T 5 B A R RERR

The final and special final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period have not been recognised as a liability at

RAME-

(i) BRE—MBFE  IRFFERE
RXNHENEQFAERRROKRE

the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

BRF—0HBEE - WHAFE Final dividend in respect of the previous

O R AR ST’
55.01ll (ZZ—754F : 52.01l)

financial year, approved and paid during
the year, of 55.0 cents (2016: 52.0 cents)

per share 70,065 66,044
B E—BIIEE  WHASEE  Special final dividend in respect of the
o R SRR B R BRI B previous financial year, approved and
BHRASOIN(ZTE—RF : &) paid during the year, of 45.0 cents (2016:
Nil) per share 57.326 -
127,391 66,044

1 18 RREEBHRAF]
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23 BEMfER (2)
(b) RE (&)
(i) BRE—MBREE  BRAFERE

23 Capital and reserves (continued)
(b) Dividends (continued)
(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

RXNNEREATEEZRRNEE
(%)

HEBE-_ZT—RF=A=1t—HI%E
[EREBR EFIEFRIR AR B S + 7
ZE—RNFEBHRE T EEARE
B% B F0 45 B R HA % B B AR 4F S A% K
X & B8 2 Y = BH646,000 7T (&
ECE—RFE=A=+—HILEE:
347,00070) * EEEEFHIERMD B
PETFERNGE RERMD RZG)TT
FREREMERITIIRNEF AEL
B A o

() BRA

Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year (continued)

In respect of the final dividend and special final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2016, there is a difference
of $646,000 (year ended 31 March 2015: $347,000)
between the final dividend and special final dividend
disclosed in the 2016 annual financial statements and
amount approved and paid during the year which
represents dividends attributable to (i) shares repurchased
and (i) new shares issued upon the exercise of share
options, before the closing date of the Register of
Members.

(c) Share capital

EERA Authorised:
SRREE 1T TR Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERITRBERAE : Issued and fully paid:
R A—H At 1 April 126,745 126,745 126,341 126,341
RIEBE IRt 232779 (H  Shares issued under share

(HI3EG) option scheme (note (i) 658 658 1,102 1,102
0188 A% 1 (BT & Gii)) Shares repurchased (note (ii)) (239) (239) (698) (698)

R=A=+—H

At 31 March

127,164 127,164 126,745 126,745
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23 BWEMGER ()
(0 B2 (&)

B s

R

(0]

(i)

R R BIRAT AR

REENBREFSEARBAARLERAE
$£658,000/% ( == — 75 4F : 1,102,000/% )
B 3K 412,049,000 7T (=& — 75 4F : 7,876,000
JT) » HA658,0007T (ZZ—754F : 1,102,000
JC) "B ABRAS - &R T AY11,391,0000C (=&
— /N 1 6,774,0007T ) B FE AR 7 4 B BR o
556,0007T (== —7~4F : 1,547,0007T) ERIE
B R 1(0(i) FT 8 80 & 5T BRSR B B AR 8 AR
BB ©

BAXE KRG

ARARBE-_T—tF=A=+—HLF
EER P EBEA & B AD BRI T

December 2016

23 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

Notes:

0}

(i)

Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for 658,000 (2016:
1,102,000) ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of
$12,049,000 (2016: $7,876,000), of which $658,000 (2016: $1,102,000)
was credited to share capital and the balance of $11,391,000 (2016:
$6,774,000) was credited to the share premium account. $556,000 (2016:
$1,547,000) has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(r)(ii).

Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company repurchased its
own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

239,500 7,139

$30.50

$28.20

FHEIBRAOBEEH  NARNB TR
REHERAZSEERGOEE - e R
% 15 BT 32 14 9 51l & 216,900,000 7T X 20,000
THEERR SR AEEAR T RAEBEH
AR 17 (B BR AP Bk o

(d) REBHEENRE

0}

(i)

B3R E

s EBERAERIEARAZRZM
Bl 150 R E157 6B RE— LN
—F(RRERYFHE -

B 32
I 34 G 85 0 B o L PO B T O B
BREFE LN ANERE - A2
BB 18 B 1) BT ) R T B AR
3G o

RREEBHRAF]
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The above repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued share capital
of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares
accordingly. The premium and transaction costs paid on the repurchase
of shares of $6,900,000 and $20,000 respectively were charged to the
Company’s and the Group’s share premium account.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of Mainland China operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 1(v).



23 EXRMGER (Z)
(d) FEENEENRZE (&)
(i) MARE

23 Capital and reserves (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii) Contributed surplus

RE-NNANFHN—HEA  A&H
AEZEBRAREKRSARRMNKER
Al e ARRABAMBRRNGAE
EFEBRBARRDETROEED
SERD I AR R RIHBARER -

ARRBHPABBETARE— NN\~
FARAEVERIRE - RIEERZE—
NAN—FRBER)  ARBHHA
AHRATAADIK

AW ETRIERT - ARB AR
BABKRERIKERSHMELD
K

(a) TS BRIR BRSO A 2 B
MAE %

(b) HEEMRAIZREERMINE
BERAEDBHTRARRMEE
BREVARAD -

(iv) EXf#E

BN SRR R IR 5100 BT & A
Bin BREMH NS %R
BT ARAEESBIRENER b
RITEHENRABE-

(v) TiMBENELRHBE

LR ENE B RER S
R Y S8 AR SR T B
ELODAR EEED -

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the
Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company has
been credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus of
the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

(iv) Capital reserve

(v)

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in note 1(r)(ii).

Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
fair value change arising on the revaluation of property
held for own use upon transfer to investment property.
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23 FEMER(Z)
(e) EXREIR

23 Capital and reserves (continued)
(e) Capital management

AEREREANTIEANRERERE
RREHBE N - LT E E BE 5B BIRE Bk
FREMEBAMEENGERARSHE
B BESBRIEMHDR -

R-ZZE—+tF=A=+—H A&£H
48 8 7 3E 3,583,000 T ( — & — /N F ¢
6,636,0007C) ° BN RZZT—tF =
A=+—H8 8Bk X(AAXEHERE
HEBRAMBEENLE) B05% (=
E-—RF:1.0%) - R=ZZE—tF=A
—t+—8 AEENTHERAERSLE
# A $£502,979,0007T( = T — X F ¢
548,607,000 7T) °

AEEREBLREHRRIMEERLEAR
B AEERRSERLRAEFRNS
PR B 3 B AR 42 B AR AOR O B EEMRFE 2
BEGFE - YRENREERRSE
ARRBIELAE -

24 eREREERARMEE
(a) EREREER QI AEE

AEERELRXFERTHREE R
PEL  MEMEREAR - NEELEL
R B A SR RRIA B S B TR AE e R PR AR
M & BE R B R BORAME B HOA - B0

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2017, the Group has total borrowings
amounting to $3,583,000 (2016: $6,636,000). The gearing
ratio, representing the ratio of total borrowings to the total
share capital and reserves of the Group was 0.5% (2016: 1.0%)
at 31 March 2017. The Group had time deposits and cash
balances as at 31 March 2017 amounting to $502,979,000
(2016: $548,607,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

24 Financial risk management and fair value
(a) Financial risk management and fair value

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

T o manage these risks are described below.

(i) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank
and other financial assets. Management has a credit
policy in place and the expenses to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

(i) FERRE

AEENEERREERBEEEKR
R HMEYGK - |RITER  FRR
RITHREREMEHMEE - EXEE
EREEENEERR Y ETHE
RELEERARNEE -

1 22 KRIFEEEERAA
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24 EMEAREERARKRE(F)
() TREREERAAEEE)

0]

(ii)

FERR (&)

SRR A AL b R R & - A&
BEAMEMBER  ERAKERA
RIFEEREFMNE P IRHERRT -
ZEFPRURE - JEBRIRE
ARAR - RBEHMR - FERRY
BHREFMEAEPER

AEENTERER  REEHRREM
TREE-—REFREEARINE
BUMEE -

BRPEE 26 R AN R RIBLER D HT B 2 F)
MIRTHBEEREVBER A&
B E A R AR E AR E
AASEERR -

B RS BAK E W ER A E
WHAEENERERROE—F
BEATEIINHEES

=
EE

RBESERE

AEBANENKEERARER
FNBRSEETE  BRRSAHBH
RHREMEEE R ARNEAGR
EHER(ARIERBEBRLFARE
RLER  ERSKARAEFTENHH
%)  AREHNBRECHERRD
BB URERENEEREZHED
BRE BUBRESTHRNR S
e WitE B BREEIUS - R &
ARIEERE - Mk EEBMNRER

N\

TRAVNAREENETERITES R
BER &R H 8R4 E B B
HeZEERBBEROEANARS
RE(BRAKNEN R (NEZE)
BN HmERRAE KA ERGFEH B
M) RAKEAZRE M BHM5
# e

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

0}

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that catering services are
provided to customers with a sound credit history. Sales
to retail customers are made in cash, Octopus or via major
credit cards. At the end of the reporting period, there
were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group's time deposits and cash balances and other
financial assets are normally placed with financial
institutions of high credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the Company
in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 26, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 15.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain pre-determined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirement and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's non-derivative and derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

123



B RS ER AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRILAEETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

24 SRMERAREERAREE(Z) 24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
() eREABEERAAEBEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) RBESRER (&) (i) Liquidity risk (continued)
MR BEREEIER(RTa 2% For term loans subject to repayment on demand clauses
BERT) MEHERME - BEH which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
WEHGIIRESYEERREENIRS R analysis shows the cash outflow based on the contractual
o WA B EERATTE BN repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the
[B] B 2R 1 4 (R (R HE 1 38 & 7 HH Y B timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
IEFTBRRZE - their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.

RITER Bank loans 3,583 3,655 1,773 1,739 143

S eES Rental deposits received 2,262 2,262 952 24 1,286
FEHBRZUMEETEA  Creditors and accrued

expenses 364,311 364,311 364,311 - -

370,156 370,228 367,036 1,763 1,429

RITER Bank loans 6,636 6,787 3,139 1,767 1,881
BliEEEE Rental deposits received 2,052 2,052 45 - 2,007
JEFBRZUMEEER  Creditors and accrued
expenses 339,897 339,897 339,897 - -
TEeRIA Derivative financial
instruments 12 12 12 - -
348,597 348,748 343,093 1,767 3,888
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24 EMEAREERARKRE(F)
() ERMEREERDAEE ()
(iii) FI= @B

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk

KEIE’J%'J“?J—LKAI%%QET?E
c FTARITERZR™H M K&

E o
o

FRITEZME - HEERFEARR
AEHIR AP ETHZE
REBTEFEAFNEREHEHUE
EH =R o ﬁ—ﬁ—tifﬂﬂr
—H - AEERTEFRNEBRIEXA
9%(f§—7T¢- 3%)

AEEB I ABETENFIREL
ABH - AEBEEFEAEBBERNER
T EPUEE M ETEMZ B A KRR
HWE - R_TE—+t&F=A=+—8"
AEBMIWEIANERBHEH(ZF
—754F 1 1,333,00070) - AEEE &
FERITIEFRAFI R - LARE FI R &)
R Z -

73_/\\ = /\i A= + =] Lﬁqﬁ
AR R ¥ FEDE - ERBER
(QFWT?S}E’JEIJHHE—@& LA &
EREAER274% 8 - BT —X
F=R=+—8" ZIS%IPﬁuTﬂé,HH
BHHN AR BEFER12,0007T © B
AEHECERAATTLESRTE  WE
FT AT FE A BR 3R R0 B b A< 3k (BT %
17) °

R-T—tF=ZF=+—8 " (H5t&
BE FI R &8 0,8 > S0 B E 25 (BRA%
AR BRERERFTE) A5
| 1Y B B4 12 5 B TR B i B 2 R
b 1IN 15,0007 (Z B — K 4E -
26,0007T) °

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank
loans. All bank loans bear interest at market rates.

For the bank loans, when appropriate and at times of
interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps
may be used to assist in the Group’s management of
interest rate exposure. The effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2017 is 1.9% (2016:
1.8%) per annum.

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate mix of
fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with the
Group’s policy. At 31 March 2017, the Group had no
interest rate swap (2016: $1,333,000) to fix the interest
rate of a bank borrowing so as to reduce the impact of
interest rate fluctuation.

The swap as at 31 March 2016 matured over the next 0.5
years, matching the maturity of the related loan (see note
18) and had fixed swap rate of 2.74%. The net fair value
of swap entered into by the Group at 31 March 2016 was
$12,000. This amount was recognised as derivative
financial instruments and was included within “Trade and
other payables” (note 17).

At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $15,000 (2016: $26,000).
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24 SRMERAREERAREE(Z)
(a) zREREERAREE(E)
(iii) FIRE B (Z

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)
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The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expenses or income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through cash at bank and other financial assets that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars and Renminbi. The Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short term imbalances.

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to foreign currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.



24 eMRARERRARMEEZ)
(a) eRmEBEERAAEE(E)
(iv) E#E s (&)

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iv) Currency risk (continued)

Hit S REE Other financial assets - 9,017 - 8,405
RITEFEHRMES Bank deposits and cash 109,378 88,404 15,027 174,155
109,378 97,421 15,027 182,560

TRF AR B RO RR B 1R E T B AR B
S ) PR R 7S % ) T 7 2 EE K [ i ) B
ERHmERARCDEE (RRAAEM
[ B B B R N ) T RV B -
FETE - HRETTES T - AN
SEBEHMETHAETNEZRTE LR
EREAZS -

The following table indicates the change in the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits that would arise
if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, as Hong Kong dollar is
pegged to United States dollar, the Group does not
expect any significant movements in the United States
dollar/Hong Kong dollar exchange rate.

AR Renminbi

5.0% 4,871 5.0% 9,128
(5.0)% (4,871) (5.00% (9,128)
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24 SMEREERARMKE(E)
(a) SREREERAAEME(HF
(v) ARME
A% EEER

24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) Fair values

Fair value hierarchy

AEERBERRNERTARAE
ERRETHEREFE ZFERMITE
ERAC(EBRBREEN) F1358—
[ AABEAZIMREN=ZERIA
BEEBMR - AEE2RUATHENE
PR AENABEREENER
- MEEAARBEFEREME
BEBNEL

The fair value of the Group’s financial instruments is
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis and is categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

- BE-—ERLE: REAZE-—ER — Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
wWABEBIEREESE BN Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
EHHEERMIS N RETHER markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
B)RAEAAEE- measurement date.

- FERGE: FREZELEH - Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
ANE(NAREE -EBRNATBE inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
MAE)WERESA A EHREG and not using significant unobservable inputs.
ANERFTEQREE - FATEER Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
¥ A B R BT I5 BUR A 8 A are not available.

B -

- ZFEZERMEE: KRERTAE — Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
R ABRGTEANEME ° significant unobservable inputs.

The derivative financial instruments as at 31 March 2016
as described in note 17 fell into Level 2 of the fair value

RZZE—R"F=HA=1+—H &
T RN 17FTEAE —AAE
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hierarchy.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no
transfers between financial instruments in different levels.
The derivative financial instruments were matured during
the year ended 31 March 2017. The Group's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(v) Fair values (continued)

FE_BRAAEEFTEFAAET
SEFIEAE
REEMERBMERINESHORAAE
ERERTREERBEXITIAAR
BHEXRR  FASHENRERD
i BB TANAAEEEL
o

PTESBMTAR-_T—RNF=ZA=1
—HAORARBERKRERNMISAERT
RANNAFBSREMETE - A%
ERREHE-_ZE—X"E=ZA=+—H%
BIRTTRIER BN XHE - BiNE
ANMEENEEEZERTRATESR
TE:  FIAFMENF06%ZE0.7% °

LA NEESR T @ T A2 A
1EfE
REBIRK A EHR A AR S B
TEAMEEEE RER-T R F
ZA=T—BHAAEBEDRITK-

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of structured note and forward foreign
exchange contract are derived from the fair value of the
underlying instrument by using discounted cash flow
analysis taking the credit risk and the exchange rate of
USD against RMB into account.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments as at 31
March 2016 was determined by discounting the future
cash flows of the contracts at the current market interest
rates. The Group used the interest rate curve of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") as of 31 March
2016 plus an adequate constant credit spread to discount
derivative financial instruments. The interest rates used
were 0.6%-0.7%.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2016.
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24 SRMERAREERAREE(Z) 24 Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(b) £ T EHVER (b) Categories of financial instruments

SMEE Financial assets
HEMEmEE Other financial assets
- BEEIHKRAE - Held-to-maturity investment 9,017 8,405
B R E U R Loans and receivables
- EUERFIZS — Debtors and deposits 119,315 101,396
- RITFEFANBRE — Bank deposits and cash 502,979 548,607
622,294 650,003
631,311 658,408
A= Financial liabilities
BARBEFAEZEMNEFIE  Finandal instruments at fair value through
profit or loss = 12
TR SHA AR S AR At amortised cost or cost
- BlkieZe — Rental deposits received 2,262 2,052
- ERBRFAAEET 2R — Creditors and accrued expenses 364,311 339,897
- RITER — Bank loans 3,583 6,636
370,156 348,585
370,156 348,597
25 i 25 Commitments
(a) R=Z—+F=A=+—BREFMTXK (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2017 not
EMEMRANIRBEFNEREENT ¢ provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

[SEIES] Contracted for 7,099 3,789
EREERRETH Authorised but not contracted for 6,962 18,466
14,061 22,255
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i (&)

(b) R=E—+E=R=+—H ' BETMR

26

BRHOGCEHETAZRENNREMERE
~EEEES T

25 Commitments (continued)

(b) At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
are payable as follows:

—FR Within 1 year 356,668 323,371
—FEEBRFRN After 1 year but within 5 years 526,273 385,254
HF1E After 5 years 4,608 1,406

887,549 710,031

AEBULEHERADOWE - 5L
E—RUTAP—FENEF  WAHER
EEHAREN  BRSAEKRIEITE
EE c HENKEATZREE IR
mEHEE  HEHEERRANIONE
20% (ZF—RF : 10%E20%) &R &
AESHEBERETE  ETRREELILE
BHA o

AEBECOMEBAOMEENE -KR-_F—+
FZA=1+—8  RIETAMHRNDHE
RIEHE BRI SAE 2 R B A8
#%1,542,0007T (= F — 734 : 4,685,000
L) °

KBEAR

R-ZF—+tF=A=+—8 FAFEH
ET2AMBRRESNZBERKE
RITHE A E M ARITIEHER -

RBEWR EER/RERBERE
BARRREREMAIEETK - RIS
HIR  ARRIRBZERARENZAE
BRAANBARCRIMNERESR
85,512,000 ( =& — /X & : 79,139,000
TT) BERRERREERERER -

2N A R SR AR B AR (AR T U
RAREAAEBEEXNEME A
BERBER

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms
are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased to
reflect market rentals. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2016: 10% to 20%) of
the revenue over the base rents and are excluded from the
information disclosed above.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2017
were $1,542,000 (2016: $4,685,000).

26 Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2017, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The
maximum liability of the Company at the end of the reporting
period under the guarantees is the amount of the facilities
drawn down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantees, being $85,512,000 (2016: $79,139,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be
reliably measured and there is no transaction price.
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Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

(a) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid to

the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

(b) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a

(0)

property from New Champion International Limited (“New
Champion”). New Champion is a company wholly beneficially
owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and his family members.
In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of New
Champion. Rental expenses incurred during the vyear
amounted to $2,280,000 (2016: $2,265,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony”). Hibony is a
company beneficially owned by Pengto International Limited (a
company beneficially owned by a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object). In addition, Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung is a director of Hibony. Rental expenses incurred
during the year amounted to $3,036,000 (2016: $3,036,000).

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

connected transactions

The related party transaction in respect of (c) above constitutes
a continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in the section “continuing
connected transaction” of the Report of the Directors.

The related party transaction in respect of (b) above
constitutes a continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however they are exempt
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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28 Company-level financial information

(a) Company-level statement of financial position

ERBEE Non-current assets

S NG 3 Interests in subsidiaries 385,265 390,261

R IR B B Deferred tax assets 145 306
385,410 390,567

REBEE Current assets

R LT B 0 R EL th e Lt R Trade and other receivables 183,734 108,723

IRITIFHRMIE S Bank deposits and cash 495 452
184,229 109,175

RBEaE Current liabilities

JETBR AN H Ath RS X Trade and other payables 70,416 36,998

REBEEFEE Net current assets 113,813 72,177

BEEFE NET ASSETS 499,223 462,744

EAH G CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28(b)

k&N Share capital 127,164 126,745

S Reserves 372,059 335,999

RS TOTAL EQUITY 499,223 462,744

Exgr T tFANA-+T-BREY

AT o

‘S

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

BITERE

Executive Chairman

Chan Chee Shing
1T A%

Chief Executive Officer

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 22 June 2017.
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28 ANFIEEMESTE (&) 28 Company-level financial information (continued)

(b) AEIEEEREEFR (b) Company-level statement of changes in equity
TREFN AR FER AR ERE Details of the changes in the Company's individual
HRA) B HAR A B B 15 - components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the reporting period are set out below:

R-Z—-HF At 1 April 2015
mA—H 126,341 8,948 28,182 1,974 268,950 434,395
FEEDIENR S Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (66,044)  (66,044)
REEDBIRAIAE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - (50,725)  (50,725)
REF R H Profit for the year - - _ - 150,687 150,687
RIEEEAEST 813447 Shares issued under share
)il option scheme 23(0)() 1,102 6,774 - - - 7,876
BITER Issue expenses - (398) _ - _ (38)
AR S BRI LARR 1D Equity-settled share-based
RERNZ S transactions 23(0)(0) - 1,547 - 708 - 2,255
Bl & Bk D Repurchase of own shares
- ENHE - par value paid 23(c)(i) (698) - - - - (698)
- BfREM — premium and
RHHA transaction costs paid ~ 23(c)(ii) - (14,964) - - - (14,964)
RZB—ARF At 31 March 2016
=B=+—H 126,745 2,267 28,182 2,682 302,868 462,744
RoB—Xx% At 1 April 2016
A—H 126,745 2,267 28,182 2,682 302,868 462,744
FEEEIEN Dividends approved in respect
% 8 of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (127,391) (127,391)
REEEEIRA Dividends declared in respect
5N of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - (43317) (43,317)
REZHF Profit for the year = = = — 200,529 200,529
IRIBEEACERT B%E4T Shares issued under share
B option scheme 23(c)(i) 658 11,391 = = - 12,049
BITER Issue expenses = (54) - - - (54)
LIRS E R LA Equity-settled share-based
BEBRNT S transactions 23(c)(i) - 556 - 1,266 - 1,822
o] B 7S & i () Repurchase of own shares
- BENEE - par value paid 23(c)(ii) (239) - - = = (239)
- BREMN — premium and
RGA transaction costs paid ~ 23(c)(ii) - (6,920) - - - (6,920)
R-ZE—t&F At 31 March 2017
=ZB=+—H 127,164 7,240 28,182 3,948 332,689 499,223
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29 RERMEBIEFARER 29 Non-adjusting event after the reporting period
EENMEHEREEZ D RABKE After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed
MERREAR S BB SR a final dividend and a special final dividend. Further details are
23(b) ° disclosed in note 23(b).

0 ERGEAKREHEE_ZE—LELF 30 Possible impact of amendments, new standards
ZEA=E+—HLEFEERBHE and interpretations issued but not yet effective
] FEAMREUREBEERNE for the year ended 31 March 2017

@

BEAUBRETZR  SEetmMAe Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
DEASEEEE - E—+E=F=+— HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
BIFERE HAER  TNIAERTEHRE standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
BB ET A XER o L4 B 15 5 March 2017 and which have not been adopted in these
AlcEMAEESBENIER financial statements. These include the following which may

be relevant to the Group:

(BEEHNRADETREF [ HenEk - KE2E] 201751 A1 H
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
(EBEERDF12RERT [ HEH - BEFHEEEARELEIR#R] 2017 1A 18
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets 1 January 2017

for unrealised losses

(BEEVBREENFEIRI2HTA] 2018F 1A 1H
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
(EBVBRELENE SR FEEFLELIIKA ] 2018%F 1 A 1H
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
(BEEVBREER)F 165 [HE ] 201915 1H
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
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30 EWMHBERKREBE_ZE—LEF 30 Possible impact of amendments, new standards
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and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for property, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is to account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting. Therefore it is
expected to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities
and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the lease. As
disclosed in note 25(b), at 31 March 2017 the Group's future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amount to $887,549,000 for properties, the majority of
which is payable more than a year after the reporting date.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis to
determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising
from operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16,
after taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and
the effect of discounting.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease.
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Principal Subsidiaries

BHEEEBRAA EE

Benley Development Limited Hong Kong

RECRYN ERABR AT &

Fairwood (Shenzhen) Development Hong Kong
Limited

Fairwood B.V . Limited* KBRBREE/ BB

Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong
Fairwood Consolidated Investments  EBABREE/Ei
Limited*
Fairwood Consolidated Investments  The British Virgin Islands/
Limited* Hong Kong
RRERE (B2) BRAT EE
Fairwood Fast Food (Management) Hong Kong
Limited
RREREBRLDT] &
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* EBABREE,/FiE

Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited*  The British Virgin Islands/

Hong Kong
WEERBRAF EE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong
KEERBRAF EE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong
AL ERBRAF EE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong

2B fn

2 shares

10,000 &R 5
10,000 shares

579,437 A%
H{E0.01 =Tk
579,437 shares of

US$0.01 each

1IRE(E
B3
1 share of US$1

2B fn

2 shares

100 & Ak &
579,437 i%
ERZEETRND
100 ordinary shares and
579,437 non voting
deferred shares

1IRE(E
(E¥3%)
1 share of US$1

2B fn

2 shares

2B fn

2 shares

2B fn

2 shares

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

NERE

Property investment
REER
Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

KA
Investment holding
BEREIER
Restaurant licences
holding
BN E

Operation of a chain of
fast food restaurants

REAE

Trademark holding

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment
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Principal Subsidiaries

KEERER AR B0 28R 1D - 100% NERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EREERER AT B0 28R - 100% NERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
FEERBRAF B0 28R 1D - 100% NERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RYIRPEREBR AR * FE A, 8,500,000 7T - 100% MeEEREE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Mainland China US$8,500,000 Operation of a chain of

Limited* fast food restaurants
KRERERAF B0 2B fn - 100% NERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ABERER AT B0 2B fn - 100% NERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RBERER AR B0 2B fn - 100% NERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
FEEREBAF B0 2B fn - 100% NERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
GEERAER A 30 2B fn - 100% NERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
EREREBRAF 30 2B fn - 100% NERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

* U ERRWIFREFH S ESEZ *  Companies not audited by KPMG

(@ RZZE—tF=A=+—08 3EHESFE (@ At31 March 2017, the financial statements of the subsidiaries

SETANE ST EZNIB AR BHRE S not audited by KPMG reflect total revenue and total net assets
AL ERAR S RN AN E R B EEFE constituting approximately 4% (2016: 6%) and 4% (2016: 4%)
A% (ZZT—RF :6%) k4% (=T — respectively of the related consolidated totals.

INEE D 4%) o

(b) FHERRMELABEEITEERAK - (b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

(A5 7R)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

I Results:
A Revenue 2,580,904 2,427,973 2,244,885 2,037,719 1,929,244
eyl Profit from operations 249,539 243,072 180,171 137,055 165,950
RbE AR Finance costs (94) 171) (70) (785) (865)
FR A& F Profit before taxation 249,445 242,901 180,101 136,270 165,085
F1S7% Income tax (44,164) (42,123) (36,134) (28,659) (25,616)
AR E AR Profit attributable to equity

FE(R %A shareholders of the Company 205,281 200,778 143,967 107,611 139,469
EEREE: Assets and liabilities:
LEYE - Hitp Investment properties, other

L/ESN =E | property, plant and

RENMEE L equipment and leasehold land 501,299 424,241 383,011 403,968 433,471
FEE] Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
ENEERE Rental deposits paid 69,089 51,670 51,470 51,048 46,892
Hih & REE Other financial assets 7,885 8,405 8,835 8,826 -
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 145 306 427 1,957 2,045
MBEE Current assets 624,965 656,224 537,356 421,149 378,594
EEHRE Total assets 1,204,384 1,141,847 982,100 887,949 862,003
RENBE Current liabilities (417,246) (396,335)  (319,847)  (293,768)  (273,518)
JEmBAaE Non-current liabilities (71,846) (69,174) (62,089) (58,919) (68,786)
EESE Net assets 715,292 676,338 600,164 535,262 519,699
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AEEFREFENREYSR
Investment Properties Held by the Group

RZE—+F=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2017

H

YT

Pl

E5m

EEEN 2

251035 2 1040 5% 75 47 Bkl Gk
Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2 Shops Medium-term
Lowu Commercial Plaza

Guangchang South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC
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